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to BSE at 04:57 p.m., we wish to inform you that we have identified an error in the subject 

line of our previous Submission. 

To address this discrepancy, we are submitting a fresh Corporate Announcement for your 
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NOTICE 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Ratnakar 
Securities Limited (Formerly Known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) (“the Company”) will be held 
on Monday, December 15, 2025 at AMA, 1, Dr Vikram Sarabhai Marg, University Area, Ahmedabad, 

Gujarat 380015 (Venue) at 4.30 P.M., physically, to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
1. a. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the company 

for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors’ and 
Auditors’ thereon; and 
 

 b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the company for the financial year ended 
31st March 2025 and the reports of Auditors’ thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ajay Jayantilal shah (Holding Din: 00023582), who retires 

by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS : 

3. To approve Borrowing Limits under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:  

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules framed thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and applicable provisions of 
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to all other 
applicable laws, acts, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions and notifications and subject 
to such other consent(s) / permission(s) / sanction(s), as may be required, consent of the Members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter  
referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committee constituted / may 
be constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company or any other person(s), for the time being 
exercising the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by this resolution and as may be 
authorised by the Board in this regard) to raise or borrow from time to time such sum or sums as 
they may deem appropriate for the purposes of the Company notwithstanding that the monies 
already borrowed and the monies to  be  borrowed (apart from temporary  loans obtained  from  
Company’s  bankers  in the ordinary course of business) will exceed the paid-up capital, free 
reserves and securities premium not set apart for any specific purpose provided that the total 
amount upto which monies may be borrowed by the Board of Directors shall not exceed Rs 
50,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore  Rupees Only) at any time. “ 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, authority hereby 
granted to the Board or Committee of the Board to determine and consider the terms that are 
proper and most beneficial to the Company and to finalise with Banks, Financial Institutions or any 
other lenders or debenture trustees the documents for creating aforesaid mortgage and/or the 
charge and to do such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be 
necessary for giving effect to the above resolution.” 

 4. To create charges and/or mortgages and/or hypothecations on borrowings limit of the 
company.  

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent or dissent to the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:  

“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company, 
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter called the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any person(s) authorized 
and/or committee which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its 
powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to transfer, sell, lease, assign, deliver or 
otherwise dispose off, mortgage, and/or charge (in addition to the mortgages/charges previously 
created) all or any of the immovable and movable properties of the Company, wherever situate, 
both present and future or the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking or undertakings 
of the Company, (save and except the current assets that are or may be hypothecated and/or 
pledged in favour of the Company’s Bankers for securing the borrowings for Working Capital 
Requirements) in such form and in such manner and on such terms and conditions as the Board may 
think fit, together with the power to take over the management of the Company in certain events of 
default, in favour of the Company’s lenders / agents / trustees in order to secure borrowings 
availed/to be availed of by the Company, in the course of business or for securing any loans and/or 
advances already obtained or that may be obtained by the Company or others, from any Financial 
Institutions/ Banks/ Insurance Companies/ Other Bodies Corporate or person or persons and/or to 
secure any debentures issued and/or that may be issued upto a sum not exceeding Rs 
50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) at any point of time.”  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalize the terms and 
conditions for such transfer, sell, lease, disposal or creation of mortgage and/or charge and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, usual or expedient for giving effect to this 
Resolution and also to agree to any amendments thereto from time to time as it may think fit.”  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as may be 
necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, if any required, in relation to 
the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all 
deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and 
generally to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for 
the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 
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5. To approve inter-corporate loan, investments, corporate guarantees. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent or dissent to the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185, 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification thereof for the time being in force and as may be enacted from time to time), subject 
to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions, as may be necessary, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company and all other provisions of applicable laws, consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, to (a) advance 
any loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 
security in connection with any loan taken by any person in whom any of the director of the 
company is interested (b) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; (c) give any 
guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person; and 
(d) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body 
corporate, subject to the maximum aggregate limit of Rs. 25 crore (Rupees Twenty five Crore only) 
(Excluding the loans/ guarantees/ securities given or provided to wholly owned subsidiaries or joint 
venture companies, as the case may be, and investments made in wholly owned subsidiaries), on 
such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit and proper, notwithstanding the fact that the 
aggregate of the loans and investments so far made in and the amount for which guarantees or 
securities have so far been provided to all persons or bodies corporate along with the additional 
investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed to be made or given or provided by the 
Company, as mentioned above, exceeds the limits specified under Section 186(2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take from 
time to time all decisions and such steps as may be necessary for giving loans, guarantees or 
providing securities or for making such investments and to execute such documents, deeds, 
writings, instruments, papers and/or agreements as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion, deem fit, necessary or appropriate for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters concerned therewith or incidental thereto 
and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubt that may arise in this regard.” 

 
6. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor 

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent or dissent to the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder, M/s Shah & Shah Associates, Company Secretaries, Secretarial Auditors (Unique 
Identification No.: P2000GJ013500), be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company, to carry out Secretarial Audit for consecutive 5 years, i.e. from the FY. 2025-26 to FY. 
2029-30, on such remuneration including out of pocket expenses and other expenses as may be 
mutually agreed by and between the Board of Directors and the Auditor.”  
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to above resolution, the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps 
and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things which may deem necessary in this behalf.” 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: 21/11/2025 

By order of Board of Directors 
                                       Mr. Ajay Jayantilal Shah 
                     Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 0023582 
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NOTES:   

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 

his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company. The instrument of the 
proxy, in order to be effective must be received by the company, duly completed and signed 
not later than forty-eight (48) hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies 
submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate 
resolutions/authority, as applicable. (Proxy form is annexed to this report) 

 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members of a company not exceeding a fifty and 
holding in an aggregate not more than ten percent of a total share capital of the company 
carrying a voting right. A member who holding a more the ten percent of a total shares 
capital of the company carrying a voting right may appoint a single person as proxy and 
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out 

the material facts of the proposed ordinary / special resolutions are annexed to the Notice. 
 

3. Members are informed that in case of Joint holders attending the meeting, only such Joint 
holder who is first in the order of the names will be entitled to vote. 

 
4. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes 

pertaining to their bank details, nominations, change of address, change of name and e-mail 
address, etc., to their Depository Participant. This will help the Company and the Company's 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, to provide efficient and prompt services. 

 
5. The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-2025 is sent to all members via email 

at the email address registered with the RTA. Members may also note that this Notice and 
Annual Report of 2024-2025 will also be available on the Company’s Website. 

 
6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

13/12/2025 to 15/12/2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 33rd Annual General 
Meeting of the meeting. 

 
7. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administrative) Rules, 2014, as may be amended from time to time and 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as the company’s shares are listed on BSE as on 
19/05/1995 the Company is obligated to provide to the members the (remote e-voting) on 
all the resolution(s) set forth in this Notice. 
 

8. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required 
to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body 
Resolution/Authorization etc. authorizing its representative to attend the AGM on its behalf 
and to vote through remote e- voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the 
Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to www.mangalyasofttech.com . 

 
9. The following documents will be available for inspection by the Members during the 33rd 

AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
www.mangalyasofttech.com. 

 
a) Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, and the 
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained 
under the Companies Act, 2013.  
b) All such documents referred to in this Notice and the Explanatory Statement. 
 
 
 

10. Members who are holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than 
one folio are requested to send to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
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the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holding in 
one folio as per the procedure stipulated in SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024. 

 
11. In accordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations, as amended 

from time to time, and read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024., transfer of securities of the Company, including 
transmission and transposition requests, shall not be processed unless the securities are held 
in the dematerialized form with a depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity 
shares in physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to 
freely transfer them, eliminate all risks associated with physical holding and participate in 
corporate actions. 

 
12. Members holding shares in Demat mode may kindly note that any request for change of 

address or change of E-mail ID or change in bank particulars/mandates or registration of 
nomination are to be instructed to their Depository Participant only, as the Company or its 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent cannot act on any such request received directly from the 
Members holding shares in Demat mode. However, members holding shares in physical 
mode are requested to notify the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company of any 
change in their address and e-mail id as soon as possible. 

 
13. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 

email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, 
bank account number, MICR code, IFS Code, etc., to their DP’s in case the shares are held 
by them in electronic form and to Link Intime India Private Limited in case the shares are 
held by them in physical form. 

 
14. The Cut-off date for determining the names of shareholders eligible for e-voting for Annual 

General Meeting is 08/12/2025. 
 

15. Members may avail the facility of nomination by nominating a person to whom their shares 
in the Company shall vest in the event of their death. The prescribed form can be obtained 
from the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

 
16. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, Securities of listed companies 

can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case 
of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 
to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Ltd for assistance in this regard. 

 
17. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory 

Statements, if any, are open for inspection by the Members at the Company's Registered 
Office on all working days of the Company, during business hours up to the date of the 
Meeting. 

 
18. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting 

pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, 
a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen 
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
Meeting. 

 
19. All Members are requested to 
• Send all correspondence relating to transfer and transmission of shares to Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent and not to the Company. Quote their Folio No. / Client ID No. in their 
correspondence with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.  
 
• Send their queries related to accounts and operations of the Company at least 10 days in 
advance so that the required information can be made available at the meeting.  
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• Intimate Registrar and Share Transfer Agent i.e., Cameo Corporate Services Limited for 
consolidation of folios, in case having more than one folio. 
 
• Bring their attendance slip with them at the meeting attached to the Annual Report duly fill in 
and signed and handover the same at the entrance of place of the meeting. Proxy/ 
representative of a member should mark on the Attendance Slip as “Proxy” or “Representative” 
as the case may be.  
 
• Register the E-mail address and change thereto, for receiving all communications including 
Annual Report, Notices, and Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. 
 
20. In case of any queries regarding the Annual Report or for requesting hard copy of the Annual 

Report, the Members may write to www.mangalyasofttech.com 
 
21. Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the 8th AGM is given as per the 

requirement of the Secretarial Standards-2 on “General Meeting.” 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE 
AS UNDER:- 
The remote e-voting period begins on Friday 12 December, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends Monday 
14 December, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as 
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday 8 December, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. 
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, Monday 8 December, 2025. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 
facility.Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
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Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js
p  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 



Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formerly Known as “Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited”) 

[Annual Report 2024-25] 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The users to login Easi 
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where 
the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the 
user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
click on registration option. 
 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from 
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is 
in progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 
022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining physical meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
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Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 
 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’, which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. 
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

 
ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com . 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com . 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 
 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system and join General Meeting, 
physically 
 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 
 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 
 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders: 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to tapanshah814@yahoo.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  
 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. 
Pallavi Mhatre – Assistant Manager at NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com. 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@ratnakarsecurities.com. 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@ratnakarsecurities.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1(A) i.e. Login method 
for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user 
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
General Instructions: 

 
a) Mr. Tapan Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F4476, COP No. 2839), has 

been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting during the AGM and remote e-
voting in a fair and transparent manner.  

 
b) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the 

votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company. 

 
c) The Results of voting will be declared within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM. 

The declared Results, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be submitted to the Stock 
Exchanges where the Company’s equity shares are listed i.e. BSE Limited and shall also be 
displayed on the Company’s website www.mangalyasofttech.in and NSDL’s website at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 
 

Item No. 2 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Ajay Jayantilal shah (Holding DIN: 
00023582), Whole-time Director, retire by rotation at the Meeting. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company recommend his re-
appointment. 
 
Mr. Ajay Jayantilal shah (Holding Din: 00023582) is interested in the Ordinary Resolutions set 
out in Item No. 2, of the Notice with regard to his reappointment. The other relatives of Mr. 
Kushal Ajay Shah may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions set out at Item No. 2 of the 
Notice. Save and except the above, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the Ordinary Business set out under Item No. 2 of the Notice 

 
Brief Profile of Directors being Appointed as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per para 1.2.5 of the 
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS 2) : 

 
Mr. Ajay Jayantilal shah – Managing Director 

Name  
Director Identification Number 
[DIN] 

00023582 

Date of Birth  18/09/1951 
Nationality Indian 
Details of Remuneration Rs. 30,00,000 per annum 
Remuneration last paid Rs.30,00,000 per  annum 
Date of First Appointment on the 
Board 

10/11/2022 

Qualifications  B.S.C (Bachelor’s degree in Science from Gujarat 
University) Gujarat University (1972) 

Brief resume and nature of 
expertise in specific functional 
areas 

30 years of experience in stock broking and 
advisory industry including more than 10 years of 
experience in the banking industry across various 
divisions and he has been promoter and director 
of Ratnakar Securities since last 30 years. 

Disclosure of relationship between 
Directors inter-se 

NA 

Names of Listed entities in which 
he/she also holds the directorship 
and the membership of committees 
of the board 

NA 
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Item No. 3 
Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Board of Directors should not, 
except with the consent of the members of the Company in General Meeting, Borrow monies 
(apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of 
business) in excess of the aggregate of the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company and its Free 
Reserves (that is to say, Reserves not set apart for any specific purpose). 
  

The proposed limit is Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) would enable the Company 
for expanding its business and use the borrowed funds, as and when required.  
 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any 
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 3 of 
the Notice. 
 
The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board of the Company 
recommends this resolution for approval of the Members of the Company as a Special 
Resolution.  
 
Item No. 4 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Board of Directors should not, 
except with the consent of the members of the Company in General Meeting, create such 
mortgage, charges and hypothecations in addition to the existing mortgages, charges and 
hypothecations created by the Company, if any on such movable and immovable assets and 
properties of the Company, both present and future and in such manner as the Board may 
deem fit, together with power to take over substantial assets in certain events, in favour of all 
or any Banks, financial institutions, investment institutions and their subsidiaries, any other 
bodies corporate and any other lenders. 
 
The proposed limit is Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) would enable the Company 
for the above mentioned transactions as and when required. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any 
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 4 of 
the Notice. 
 
The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board of the Company 
recommends this resolution for approval of the Members of the Company as a Special 
Resolution. 
 

       

No. of shares held 75,77,500 Equity Shares 
No. of Meeting attended during the 
year (2024-25) 

5 

Membership/ Chairmanship in 
Committees 

NA 
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     Item No.5 

As per the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules 
framed there under, the Company is required to obtain the prior approval of the Members by 
way of a Special Resolution to (a) advance any loan including any loan represented by a book 
debt, or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any 
person in whom any of the director of the company is interested (b) give any loan to any person 
or other body corporate; (c) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to 
any other body corporate or person; and (d) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or 
otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate in excess of limits prescribed under the 
said Section. 
Considering the future requirements of the Company, limits for making investment(s) or giving 
loan(s) and guarantee(s), it requires member’s approval and therefore consent is sought to 
enter into any such transaction(s) specified under section 185 and 186, up to an amount of Rs. 
25 crore (Rupees Twenty five Crores only) over and above such limits specified under section 
186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereto, if any. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for 
the approval of the Members of the Company. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective 
relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 5 of this Notice. 

Item No.6 

The Board of Directors has recommended for the appointment of M/s Shah & Shah Associates 
(Unique Identification No.: P2000GJ013500), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, 
pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder to carry out Secretarial Audit for consecutive 5 years, i.e. from the FY. 2025-26 to 
FY. 2029-30. 

Written consent of the Secretarial Auditors and confirmation to the effect that they are eligible 
and not disqualified to be appointed as the Auditors of the Company in the terms of the 
provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder is 
obtained. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at 
Resolution No.6 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any 
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Resolution 
No. 6 of the Notice. 
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Resolution No. 6 of the 
Notice for approval by the Shareholders. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: 21/11/2025 

By order of Board of Directors 
                                       Mr. Ajay Jayantilal Shah 
                     Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 0023582 
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Director’s Report: 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Ratnakar Securities Limited  
(Formerly Known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited)  

 
Your Board of Directors are pleased to present 33rd Annual Report together with Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 
1. Initiation about the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016: 
 
The Company, previously under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), had its 
Resolution Plan approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, on September 27, 2022, as 
submitted by Ratnakar Securities Private Limited. This resolution plan includes merger of 
Ratnakar Securities Private Limited into Mangalya Soft-tech Limited. 

 
Further, basis the order dated March 28, 2022, issued by the Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad 
Bench, the resolution professional was directed to first undertake the procedure of Section 
230 before the plan is formally approved to avoid further complications. As per this direction, 
Ratnakar Securities Private Limited has duly complied with the NCLT order and filed the 
Scheme of Amalgamation with NCLT which was approved on September 11, 2023, which was 
further extended and approved as on 26th June, 2025 by Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench. The Company thereafter completed all actions required for 
giving effect to the amalgamation. In this regard, the Company has carried out the necessary 
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable stock exchange regulations, 
including issuance and allotment of shares, effecting the change of name, undertaking the 
required corporate actions, and updating statutory and regulatory records to reflect the post-
merger structure. 
 
As the Company’s name was changed as per the approved merger scheme, this report is 
addressed to the members with the new name, i.e. Ratankar Securities Limited. 
    
Some of the actions are still required to be followed to complete Corporate insolvency 
Resolution process and future Listing of shares. Detailed action plans are given in Annexure 
under Management Discussion and Analysis report. 
 
Further, now the Ratnakar Securities Private Limited is merged with Mangalya Soft-tech 
Limited, this standalone report is for the merged entity. There is one  wholly owned subsidiary 
company, namely Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited, which is reflected in consolidated 
report. 
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2. Financial Highlights: 
 

The Financial highlights of the Company, on standalone and consolidated basis, for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 is summarised below: 

                (Amount in ‘000) 
 

 

 
3. Operations during the financial year: 

 
During the year, on standalone basis, there was income of Rs. 2238.49 Lakhs as compare to 
last year income of Rs. 1991.44 Lakhs . Net Profit before Tax of the Company, stood at Rs. 
337.26 Lakhs as compared to last year profit of Rs. 280.17 Lakhs. The Profit after Tax was Rs. 
235.48 Lakhs against last year’s profit of Rs. 222.61 Lakhs.  
 
Consolidated Results 
 
Total income of the company on a consolidated basis stood at Rs. 2238.49 Lakhs as compared 
to last year income of Rs. 1991.44 Lakhs, which shows increase in by 12.41%.   
 
Consolidated level, the net  Profit after Tax was Rs. 235.48 Lakhs against last year’s profit of 
Rs. 222.61 Lakhs. The management is working to improve the turnover and profitability and is 
hopeful of turning out a better performance in the year 2025-26. 
 

4. Change in nature of business: 
 

In accordance with the resolution plan approved by NCLT Ahmedabad, main object of 
Ratnakar Securities Private Limited (‘RSPL’), is  inserted in this company, which is Ratnakar 
Securities Limited and now the Company is doing mainly business of  Stock Broking activities 
and  having its membership with BSE, NSE and NSDL.  
 
 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 
 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 
Total Revenue 223848.52 199143.79 223848.52 199143.79 
Operational Expenses (17,55,11.63) (1,59,729.08) 190122.72 171126.31 
Earning Before Finance 
Cost, Depreciation and Tax  

48,336.89 39,414.71 48336.89 39414.71 

Less: Finance Cost (10048.20) (7800.72) 10048.20 7800.72 
Depreciation (4562.89) 3596.51 4562.89 3596.51 
Earning Before Taxation 33725.80 28017.48 33725.81 28017.48 
Less: Current Tax (10315.00) (7960.00) 10680.70 7380.70 
Deferred Tax (200.26) 1201.95 (165.44) (622.65) 
Other Comprehensive 
Income 

337.86 1001.42 337.86 1001.42 

Earnings after Tax (EAT) 23548.07 22,260.86 23548.41 22260.85 
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5. Dividend: 
 

The Company is not declared and paid any dividend to conserve the resources an future 
expansion. (last year no dividend)  
 

6. Reserves and Surplus: 
 

No amount was transferred to Reserves and Surplus in the FY. 2024-25 and previous year. 
 

7. Register Office: 
 

     There is no change in register office during the year. 
 
8. Finance: 

 
The Company is availing day to day services from HDFC Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Bank 
of India and availing its working capital facility from HDFC bank and ICICI Bank Limited.  

The Company intend to approve the enhanced borrowing limits up to Rs. 50 Crore and for that 
necessary resolution is placed before members at ensuing AGM.  
 

9. Annual Return: 
 

As required under Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return as on March 31, 
2025 is available on the website of the Company at www.mangalyasofttech.in . 
 

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

The Company has proper Board constitution with 2 Executive Promoter Directors and 3 
Independent Directors. During the year, there was no change in Board. 
 

Mr. Ajay Nagindas Gandhi is acting as a Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Mr. Harshil 
Shah (Mem. No.: ACS 67243) has been acting as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of 
the Company. During the year, there was a change in KMP. Mr. Dhavalkumar has resigned as 
Company secretary, w.e.f. 31st July 2024. Mr. Harshil Shah was appointed as a Company 
Secretary w.e.f. 28th October, 2024.  
 

11. Committees of Directors: 
 

 Audit Committee consist of following members : 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of member Designation 

1 Mr. Harsh Vinodbhai Mittal Chairman 
2 Mr. Kushal Ajay Shah Member 
3 Mr. Pratapbhai Mukundbhai Teli Member 
4 Mrs. Krina Sujal Desai Member 

  



Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formerly Known as “Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited”) 

[Annual Report 2024-25] 
Note: All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. 
 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee  consist of following members : 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of member Designation 

1 Mr. Harsh Vinodbhai Mittal Chairman 
2 Mr. Pratapbhai Mukundbhai Teli Member 
3 Mrs. Krina Sujal Desai Member 

 
 Stakeholder Relationship Committee consist of following members : 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of member Designation 

1 Mr. Pratapbhai Mukundbhai Teli Chairman 
2 Mr. Harsh Vinodbhai Mittal Member 
3 Mr. Ajay Jayantilal Shah Member 

 
12.Meetings of the Board, Committees & Compliance to Secretarial Standards 

 
 During the year, the board of directors met 5(five) times on 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 

2024, 28th October, 2024, 14th November, 2024, 12th February, 2025. All the members 
have attended all the meetings. 

 During the year, 4 (Four) meetings of Audit Committee were held on 30th May, 2024, 13th 
August, 2024, 14th November, 2024, and 12th February, 2025. All the members have 
attended all the meetings. 

 During the year, 2 (Two) meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held 
on 13th August, 2024, 28th October, 2024. Both the meetings were attended by all the 
members. 

 

 No SRC meeting has been held in the reporting year.  
 Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 

Regulations, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held 
on October 28, 2024.  

 The Company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings 
(SS-1) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), to the extent applicable. 

 
13. Familiarization programme for Independent Directors: 

 
The Company has an ongoing Programme where Directors, in the course of meetings of the 
Board of Directors, give information about Broking and capital market related Business 
developments and various amendments in legal and regulatory areas which include 
mandatory disclosures and fair disclosures stated under SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosures Requirement) regulations, 2015 (herein referred to as “Listing Agreement”), 
Prohibition & Insider trading regulations, and SAST Regulations so as to enable them to 
effectively discharge their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company. 
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Details of the Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors are yet to place on the 
website of the Company at- www.mangalyasofttech.in. 
 

14. Director’s responsibility Statement: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board 
hereby submits its responsibility Statement: 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the 
Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
loss of the Company for that period; 

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 on a 
‘going concern’ basis;  

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;  

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
15. A statement on declaration given by Independent Directors under sub-section (6) of Section 

149 of the Companies Act,2013 : 
 
During the year under review, all Independent Directors have given their declarations stating 
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and have also 
complied the Code for Independent Directors as prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies  
Act, 2013. In opinion of the Board, they fulfil the conditions of independence as specified in 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and Listing Regulations. They have 
further declared that they are not debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have 
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be 
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. In the 
opinion of Board, all the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant 
expertise and experience including the proficiency. 
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16. Holding / Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Companies: 

 

Ratnakar Securities Private Limited was amalgamated under CIRP and as a result Ratnakar 
Commodities Private Limited is become the subsidiary of Ratnakar Securities limited (Formerly 
known as Mangalya Softtech Limited) and details is mention in  Annexure-1. 
 
The Company has no holding Company. There is no Associate or joint venture company. 
 

17. Vigil Mechanism:  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for 
directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The mechanism 
also provides adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the 
mechanism. The policy also lays down the process to be followed for dealing with complaints 
and provides for access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of 
the personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 
18. Auditors: 

 

   Statutory Auditor: 
 

M/s Maheshwari & Goyal, appointed as a Statutory Auditors of the Company for the first term 
of five years to hold the office from the conclusion of 31st AGM till the conclusion of 36th AGM 
to be held in the year 2028. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified for being 
appointed as Auditors of the Company. 
 

The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and 
do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 
 

 Secretarial Auditors: 
 

The Company has crossed the criteria of Secretarial Audit as prescribed under the provisions 
of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Accordingly, your Company has appointed Mr. Tapan Shah, Peer reviewed Practicing Company 
Secretary, Ahmedabad, as Secretarial Auditor of your Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
The Secretarial Audit report in the form MR-3 given by Mr. Tapan Shah, Practicing Company 
Secretary is attached herewith in Annexure 4. 
 
The Board has reviewed the Secretarial Audit report for the year ended 31st march, 2025 and 
confirms that the report does have some qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or 
disclaimers which already mentioned in that report. The Company has taken necessary action 
to resolve/ rectify the all the non compliance. 
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Further Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended, M/s. 
Shah & Shah Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, is proposed to be appointed as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for next 5 years, at  the ensuing AGM,  for the financial 
year 2025-26 to 2029-30.  

 
 Internal Auditors: 
The Company has appointed  M/s Shah Jajoo & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as an 
Internal Auditor for the FY. 2024-25 . Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended, M/s Shah Jajoo & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants was again re-appointed as an Internal Auditor for financial 
year 2025-26.  

 

19.    Details of Loans, Investments and Guarantees: 
 

During the year, Company has not made any loan or investment or given any guarantee u/s 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, necessary approval is placed before members at 
ensuing AGM to the extent of Rs. 25 Crores. 
 

20.    Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with Related Parties: 

 

The Contracts or Arrangements with related parties are done on arm’s length and in ordinary 
course of business which are detailed in Note No. 36 (a) to (c) of the Financial Statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2025. Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered 
into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions are disclosed in Form AOC-2 
Annexure 2 to the report.  
 

21.    Material changes after close of the financial year: 
 

There have been many changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company after the close of the financial year, which are: 
 

1. After the completion of the financial year M/s Ratnakar Securities Private limited (RSPL) 
amalgamated with the M/s Mangalya Soft-tech Limited, (MSTL) through NCLT order dated 
June 26, 2025. Accordingly the merge annual accounts are considered for the report. 

2. Each equity shareholder of RSPL is entitled to receive, for every one (1) equity share held, 
five (5) equity shares and one (1) 6% Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Preference 
Share (“OFCRPS”) of MSTL. Accordingly, MSTL had allotted 1,50,00,000 equity shares of ₹10 
each and 30,00,000 OFCRPS of ₹10 each to the shareholders of RSPL. The Company has 
completed all statutory filings pertaining to the allotment of securities as on September 11, 
2025, including the filing of Form PAS-3 with MCA. However, the corporate action and listing 
approval is in  process with BSE, in respect of the aforesaid allotment of shares.  
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3. For facilitate the allotment, the Company has filed Form SH-7 for an increase in its 

authorised share capital from ₹10 crores to ₹19 crores, effective August 14, 2025. Further, 
Form MGT-14 for alteration of the Main Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association, 
in line with the approved Scheme, has been duly filed and registered by the Registrar of 
Companies (“ROC”) with effect from August 14, 2025.  

4. Furthermore, the Company has been granted an extension of one month and thirty days by 
the ROC for holding its Annual General Meeting (AGM), as per approval letter dated 
September 22, 2025. Accordingly, the Company was permitted to hold its AGM up to 
November 30, 2025. However, due to merger process, which includes allotment of shares, 
change of name, change of main object, etc.  was going on due to IBC matter, the Company 
needs more time for holding AGM for FY. 2024-25 and so Company had again approached 
MCA for further extension and got the second time  approval. The Registrar of Companies 
vide its approval letter dated 7th November, 2025, has accorded its approval, allowing an 
additional extension of 15 days to hold the AGM, i.e from 30th November, 2025 upto 15th 
December, 2025. 

5. Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), Office of the Central Processing Centre, has approved 
the change in name of the Company from Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited to Ratnakar 
Securities Limited through its approval letter dated 7th November, 2025. 

 
 

22. Significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts: 
 

The Company was under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad 
Bench vide it order dated September 27, 2022 approved the Resolution Plan submitted by M/s 
Ratnakar Securities Private Limited. Thereafter, there was no other significant and material 
order passed by any other regulator or court or authority. 
 

23. Conservation of energy, research and development, technology absorptions and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo: 

 
The relevant information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings & outgo as required to be disclosed in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as 
“Annexure - 3”. 
 

24. Risk Management: 
 

The Company has a Risk Management framework in place to identify, assess, monitor and 
mitigate various risks to the business. The framework also defines the risk management 
approach across the company at various levels. Company has developed and implemented a 
Risk Management Policy for the company including identification therein of elements of risk. 
 

25. Deposits from public: 
 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public within 
the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 or any other applicable provision(s), if any. 
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26. Internal Financial Controls and their adequacy: 
 

The Company is presently in the process of developing a more strong system, which shall be 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business operations. Notably, the company has 
taken the proactive step of appointing an external audit firm to conduct internal audits. The 
primary objective of this audit is to assess the adequacy of the internal control system that the 
company is currently in the process of developing and has already developed. 

 

27. Compliance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

The Company’s goal has always been to create an open and safe workplace for every 
employee to feel empowered, irrespective of gender, sexual preferences and other factors, 
and contribute to the best of their abilities. In line to make the workplace a safe environment, 
the Company has set up a policy on prevention of sexual harassment in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“PoSH Act”). Further, the Company is in process of compliance with the 
provisions under the PoSH Act relating to the framing of an anti-sexual harassment policy and 
the constitution of an Internal Committee.  

 

28. Listing Fees: 
 

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE). The Company had paid 
Annual Listing fees to the stock exchange for the Financial Year 2025-26. 
 

The trading/dealing in securities of the Company is already suspended by the Stock Exchange 
for violation of SEBI & Stock Exchange Regulations. The Company has paid BSE claim, listing 
fees, contingent liability, reinstatement fees and revocation fees in accordance with the 
approved Resolution Plan, and the Company is in the process of relisting its shares at the BSE. 

 
29. Changes in Capital Structure: 

The details of change in Capital structure during the year under review are given as under: 
 

 After the completion of the financial year due to merger order dated 26th June, 2025 the 
Company’s authorized share capital was enhanced from ₹10 crores to ₹19 crores, as  
approved by members of company in Extra ordinary general meeting held on 14th August, 
2025. 
 

 Due to allotment of new Equity and Preference shares, as per the merger order, the paid-up 
share capital of the Company is enhanced  to Rs.  18,51,99,960 (Rupees Eighteen Crores Fifty 
One Lakhs Ninety-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Only) divided into 1,55,19,996 equity 
shares (One Crore Fifty five lacs Nineteen Thousand Nine hundred and Ninety Six only) of 
Rs.10/- each  and 30,00,000 Preference Shares (Thirty Lacs Only) of Rs. 10 each. 
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30. Particulars of Employees and Remuneration of Directors: 

 

The statement containing particulars of Directors and KMP and its remuneration, as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5 (3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is 
applicable to the company. The Directors Remuneration is mentioned in Annexure-6. 
 
Particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable this year, as there were no employees 
drawing the remuneration of Rs. 102.00 Lacs or more, paid in respect of persons employed 
throughout the financial year or to whom remuneration of Rs. 8.50 lacs or more per month, 
paid in respect of persons employed for part of the financial year. 
 

31. Code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders: 
 

The Company is in process of adopting  a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report 
trading by insiders which prohibits trading in securities of the company by directors and 
employees while in possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information in relation to the 
Company. However, the Company has started maintaining Structural Digital Database (SDD) 
register. 
 

32. Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than those which are reportable to the 
Central Government: 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any 
frauds to the Audit Committee or to the Board of Directors as prescribed under Section 
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 

33. Appointment of Designated Person (Management And Administration) Rules 2014 - Rule 9 of 
the Companies Act 2013: 

  
In accordance with Rule 9 of the Appointment of Designated Person (Management and 
Administration) Rules 2014, it is essential for the company to designate a responsible 
individual for ensuring compliance with statutory obligations. 

 
The company has proposed and appointed a designated person in a Board meeting. 

 
34. Statement on Compliance with Maternity Benefit Provisions: 

 
The Company declares that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit 
Act, 1961. All eligible women employees have been extended the statutory benefits 
prescribed under the Act. The Company remains committed to fostering an inclusive and 
supportive work environment that upholds the rights and welfare of its women employees in 
accordance with applicable laws. 

 
 
 
 
 



Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formerly Known as “Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited”) 

[Annual Report 2024-25] 
 

35. Address at which the Books of Account are to be maintained:  
 

The Company is also maintaining its books of accounts at its registered office address. 
 

36. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is set out in “Annexure - 5”, included in this 
Annual Report and forms part of this Report. The Audit Committee has reviewed the 
Management Discussion and Analysis of financial conditions and operations during the year 
under review.  
 

37. Acknowledgement: 
 
Your directors takes this opportunity to thank the shareholders, bankers, government, 
regulatory authorities and other stakeholders for their consistent support through the process 
of CIRP and for smooth transition.  
 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 21/11/2025 
 

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
 
 
Ajay Jayantilal Shah 
Chairman and Managing Director 
[DIN: 00023582] 
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Annexure - 1 

Form AOC - 1 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. 
No 

Name of the subsidiary Companies and joint 
ventures Companies 

Subsidiary Company 
Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited 
CIN: U27205GJ2004PTC099562 

1 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period 

N.A. 

2 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries. 

N.A. 

3 Share capital 86.45 
4 Reserves & surplus 141.905 
5 Total assets 258.232 
6 Total Liabilities 258.232 
7 Investments 58.982 
8 Turnover 14.322 
9 Profit before taxation -7.263 
10 Less : Provision for taxation -7.263 
11 Profit after taxation -7.913 
12 Proposed Dividend  -- 
13 % of shareholding  100% 
Notes: 
 
The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: N.A. 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A. 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 21/11/2025 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
 
 
Ajay Jayantilal Shah 
Chairman and Managing Director 
[DIN: 00023582] 
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Annexure - 2 

Particulars of Contracts / Arrangements made with related parties 

Form AOC - 2 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm`s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

[(Pursuant to Clause (h) Of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)] 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis 
 

No such transactions were entered during the financial year 2024-25. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 
 

The contracts or arrangement or transactions entered with the related parties during the financial 
year 2024-25 were not material and the same were disclosed in the notes to accounts forming part 
of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

(a) Name(s) of Related party and nature of 
Relationship 

As mentioned in Note No. 36(a) 

(b) Nature of Contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

As mentioned in Note No. 36(b)and 36(c) 

(c) Duration of Contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

As mutually agreed upon 

(d) Salient terms of contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, is any 

As mutually agreed upon 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the board, if any - 
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 21/11/2025 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
 
 
Ajay Jayantilal Shah 
Chairman and Managing Director 
[DIN: 00023582] 
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Annexure - 3 

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

 (A) Conservation of energy:  
 

i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy for 2024-25; 
 
 There were no steps taken for conservation of energy during the year. 
 

ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; 
 

 There were no steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy. 
 

iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment; 
 
 There is no such specific investment done by the Company.   

           
(B) Technology absorption: 
 
The Company has not taken any technology in particular or entered into any technology agreement 
during the period. During the year, no further development is done for research. 
     
(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo: 
 
Total foreign exchange earnings during the year were Nil. (Previous year Nil). 

Foreign Currency Outgo during the year was Nil. (Previous year Nil). 
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Annexure - 4 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the financial year ended 31/03/2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the  

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
The Members,  
RATNAKAR SECURITIES LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Mangalya Soft-tech  Limited) 
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564 
Shop-304, Sankalp Square-2, Nr. Delux Appartment,  
Nr. Kalgi char rasta, Jalaram Temple, Paldi,  
Ellisbridge Ahmadabad-380006 
 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices adopted by Ratnakar Securities Limited (Formerly Known as 

Mangalya Soft-tech  Limited) (MSTL) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit through 

electronically by way of scan copy or soft copy through mail or otherwise, I hereby report that in my 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder (except few as stated 

below)  and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined through electronically by way of scan copy or soft copy through mail or otherwise, 

the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under as applicable;                                                                                

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment ; 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange  Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and  

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, as amended from time to time; 

c) SEBI (Investor Protection and Education Fund) Regulation, 2009; 

(vi) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India(SS – 1 and SS – 2); 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, amended from 

time to time, pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchange. Few 

Observations/ qualifications are as under: 

(a) During the entire financial year, the company’s shares were under suspension at BSE and 

so no trading was done, as the relisting was not completed. 

(b) No FEMA compliance is done during the year (for FY. 2023-24) for foreign direct 

investment (FLA Return). 

(c) Few Compliance under Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 

has not been carried out or done late. . In Structured Digital Database (SDD) Register and 

records maintained by the Company, for Q1 and Q2 financial results of FY. 2024-25, records 

are entered late in the Register in the month February, 2025 (for BM held on 13/08/2024 

and 14/11/2024). From Q3 onwards, company has started preparing data regularly.  

(d) Further, during the FY. 2024-25 also, the Company was under Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process (“CIRP”) and therefore the Company has not maintained and updated 

website properly, which includes few policies have not been approved and updated on the 

website. 

(e) There was no Company Secretary (KMP) in the Company, during the period 01/08/2024 to 

27/10/2024. 

During the year under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 

were not applicable to the Company: 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 

Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity) Regulations, 2021; 

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 
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iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and 

2018;  

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 

(Amendment) Regulations, 2016 and 2021; 

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 and 2018; and 

vi. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Overseas Direct Investments and External Commercial Borrowings; 

I further report that – 

The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, name 

of the related parties, etc. has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to 

review by statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals. 

I further report that – 

Based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of the audit, in my opinion, the company has adequate systems and processes 

and at the same time, the Company is in process of implementation of various conditions of 

Resolution Plan.  

I further report that - 

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the Key 

Managerial Person (KMP) that took place during the financial year were carried out in compliance 

with the provisions of the Act.  

I further report that during the audit period, there were few specific events/ actions in pursuance 

of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards, etc. having a major bearing on the 

Company’s affairs, details of which are as stated below: 

a) Events which occurred during the Financial year: 

I. During the period under review, Mr. Dhavalkumar Chaudhari has been resigned as the 

company secretary and compliance officer from the company w.e.f. 31st July, 2024 and Mr. 

Harshil Shah has been appointed as the Company secretary a compliance officer of the 

Company w.e.f .28.10.2024.  

b) Events which occurred after completion of Financial year: 

6. After the completion of the financial year M/s Ratnakar Securities Private limited (RSPL) 

amalgamated with the M/s Mangalya Soft-tech Limited, (MSTL) through NCLT order dated 

June 26, 2025. Accordingly the merge annual accounts are considered for the report. 
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7. Each equity shareholder of RSPL is entitled to receive, for every one (1) equity share held, 

five (5) equity shares and one (1) 6% Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Preference 

Share (“OFCRPS”) of MSTL. Accordingly, MSTL had allotted 1,50,00,000 equity shares of ₹10 

each and 30,00,000 OFCRPS of ₹10 each to the shareholders of RSPL. The Company has 

completed all statutory filings pertaining to the allotment of securities as on September 11, 

2025, including the filing of Form PAS-3 with MCA. However, the corporate action and listing 

approval is in  process with BSE, in respect of the aforesaid allotment of shares.  

8. For facilitate the allotment, the Company has filed Form SH-7 for an increase in its 

authorised share capital from ₹10 crores to ₹19 crores, effective August 14, 2025. Further, 

Form MGT-14 for alteration of the Main Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association, 

in line with the approved Scheme, has been duly filed and registered by the Registrar of 

Companies (“ROC”) with effect from August 14, 2025.  

9. Furthermore, the Company has been granted an extension of one month and thirty days by 

the ROC for holding its Annual General Meeting (AGM), as per approval letter dated 

September 22, 2025. Accordingly, the Company was permitted to hold its AGM up to 

November 30, 2025. However, due to merger process, which includes allotment of shares, 

change of name, change of main object, etc.  was going on due to IBC matter, the Company 

needs more time for holding AGM for FY. 2024-25 and so Company had again approached 

MCA for further extension and got the second time  approval. The Registrar of Companies 

vide its approval letter dated 7th November, 2025, has accorded its approval, allowing an 

additional extension of 15 days to hold the AGM, i.e from 30th November, 2025 upto 15th 

December, 2025. 
 

10. Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), Office of the Central Processing Centre, has approved 

the change in name of the Company from Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited to Ratnakar 

Securities Limited through its approval letter dated 7th November, 2025. 

                                                               
Place:  Ahmedabad            Name of Company Secretary in practice: Tapan Shah 
Date:   21/11/2025                        FCS No. : 4476 
           C P No. : 2839 
           UDIN: F004476G001945096 
           PR No.: 6745/2025 
 
 
Note:  This Report is to be read with my letter of above date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure-A 

To,           
The Members,  
RATNAKAR SECURITIES LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Mangalya Soft-tech  Limited) 
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564 
Shop-304, Sankalp Square-2, Nr. Delux Appartment,  
Nr. Kalgi char rasta, Jalaram Temple, Paldi,  
Ellisbridge Ahmadabad-380006 
 
My report of the above date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was 
done based on the records and documents provided, on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices followed 
by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 

   

Place:  Ahmedabad         Name of Company Secretary in practice: Tapan Shah 
Date:  21/11/2025                        FCS No. : 4476 
          C P No. : 2839 
          UDIN: F004476G001945096 
          PR No.: 6745/2025 
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Annexure – 5 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
 Post-Merger Integration, Regulatory Progress, and Strategic Outlook: 

Subsequent to the financial year-end, the Company has undertaken significant steps to 
operationalise the merger of Ratnakar Securities Private Limited with Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(formerly known as Mangalya Soft-tech Limited). Pursuant to the approval of the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal dated 26/06/2025, the Company thereafter completed all actions required 
for giving effect to the amalgamation. In this regard, the Company has carried out the necessary 
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable stock exchange regulations, including 
issuance and allotment of shares, effecting the change of name, undertaking the required corporate 
actions, and updating statutory and regulatory records to reflect the post-merger structure. 

 Operationalisation of Merger, Regulatory approvals and Future Growth Strategy: 
 

Following the effectiveness of the scheme, the Company has initiated the process of obtaining fresh 
registration from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as a Stock Broker under the SEBI 
(Stock Brokers) Regulations, 1992 read with relevant regulations. This registration is critical for 
transferring and commencing the broking operations of Ratnakar Securities Private Limited within 
the merged entity. The applications for registration and membership with other market 
infrastructure institutions, including the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), NSE Clearing Limited, Indian Clearing Corporation Limited 
(ICCL), and the Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI), have already been prepared and kept 
ready for submission. These applications will be formally filed immediately upon receipt of the fresh 
SEBI Stock Broker Registration, ensuring a seamless transition of business activities into the 
Company. 
 

 Merger Implementation,Regulatory transition, Relisting Efforts, and Strategic Business Expansion: 

In parallel, the Company is progressing with the procedural requirements for revocation of 
suspension of trading of its equity shares on BSE Limited. Completion of this process is expected to 
pave the way for re-listing of the Company’s equity shares, thereby enhancing transparency and 
enabling wider participation by investors in the Company’s future growth. 

 Post-Merger Developments and roadmap for Broking and Financial Services Business Expansion: 

Looking ahead, the financial year marks the beginning of a renewed and strategic growth journey 
for Ratnakar Securities Limited. The Company intends to strengthen and scale up its equity broking 
business by offering both online and offline trading facilities, supported by advanced technological 
platforms to enhance client experience and operational efficiency. In addition, the Company plans 
to accelerate the expansion of its financial product distribution vertical by deploying additional 
resources for the distribution of mutual funds, fixed deposits, bonds, and other investment 
products, leveraging digital tools for wider reach and sharper analytics. Management remains 
committed to executing a robust growth strategy in line with the IBC Resolution Plan, with an 
overarching objective of creating long-term value for all stakeholders.  
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Annexure – 6 

Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1. Amount of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the financial year: 

Name of Director Designation         Remuneration(Rs.) 

Ajay Jayantilal Shah          Chairman & Managing Director          30,00,000              

Kushal Ajay Shah           Whole Time Director          18,00,000 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), or Manager, if any, in the financial 
year: 

Name of the Directors                    Designation                                  % of increase 

                         NA                                                   NA                                                     NA 

3. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees during the financial year: 
 

o 7-8% 
 

4. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 
 

o 35 
 

5. Average percentage increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel 
and the percentage increase in managerial remuneration: 
 

o Avg. increase for employees: 7-8 % 
o Avg. increase for managerial personnel:  7-8 % 

 
6. Affirmation: 

The Board affirms that the remuneration to Directors, KMPs and other employees is as per 
the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Ratnakar Securities Limited 

(Formally known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) 
 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
  
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the Standalone financial statements of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formally known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) (CIN:L66120GJ1992PLC017564) 
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the 
statement of profit and loss and statement (including other comprehensive income) the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year  ended on 
that date, and notes to the Standalone financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit, and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
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evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on the Standalone financial statements. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other 
information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is 
information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not include the 
Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 
 
Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial 
statements. 
 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial 
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

 
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that  

 digital back up of the accounting data was regularly taken, however the 
same has not been preserved for our verification 

 the company has identified MSME dues based only on the confirmation in 
that respect provided by the respective vendors.  

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other 
comprehensive income, Statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.  
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements materially comply 
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014  

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 
31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as at 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.  

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) Based on our examination, the Company in process of implementing an 
accounting software having feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.  

 
(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in     
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:   
 
i. The Company has disclosed material pending litigations in its Standalone 

financial statements which may impact its financial position;  
ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts   

for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  
 
 

 The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

 The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
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behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and  

 

 Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11€, as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

 

 The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year 
under audit.  

 
  For Maheshwari & Goyal 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 012946C 
 
 
 
 
Vamesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 165075 
Date: 14th November, 2025.  
Place: Ahmedabad 

UDIN: 25165075BMMKHB1086 
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 Annexure ‘A’  

To the Independent auditor’s report on the standalone financial statements 

 (Referred to paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and                                 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of the 

Company for the year ended March 31,2025) 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and In terms of the 
information and explanations given to us during the course of the audit, we state as 
under: 

1. In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets : 
 

a. The company has maintained adequate records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and relevant details of right-to-use assets and Intangible Assets 
wherever applicable. 

 
b. The Company has a program of physical verification so as to cover all the 

assets once every three years, which in our opinion is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of it’s assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment were physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies 
noticed on such verification. 

 
c. The title deeds comprising of the immovable properties which are free hold 

are held in the name of the company as at the Balance Sheet date, subject 
to charge thereupon. 
 

d. The company has not revalued the property, plant and equipment or    
intangible assets during the period. 

 
e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 

the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder. 

 
2. In respect of Company’s inventory, we report that : 

 
a. The Company doesnot have any inventories during the year and hence 

reporting under cluse (ii) are not applicable to the company. 
 

 
3. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any 
security or advance in the nature of loan to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnership or any other parties. 
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a. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loan 
or stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity during the year. 
Hence reporting under clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.  

b. In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the 
grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
Company’s interest.  

c. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not 
applicable. 

d. The Company is in business of providing loans which are called as Margin 
Trading Funding (MTF). According to the explanations and representations 
given to us by the Company, this is one of the principal business of the 
Company. According, clause (iii)(d) is not applicable to the Company. 

 
        

4. In our opinion and according to the information provided to us the company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in 
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security to the extent applicable to 
the company. 

 
 
5. According to the information provided to us, the company has not accepted any 

deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to section 76 of the act and 
the rules made there under during the period under audit. Hence, reporting under 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
6. According to the information provided to us, the maintenance of cost records 

prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 is not applicable to the Company.  

 
7. According to the information provided to us  

b. the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of 
Custom, , Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

 
c. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, duty of Custom, , Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues were outstanding at the period end, for a period of more 

than six months from the dates they become payable. 
 

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, no dues are 

outstanding of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, , Value 

Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues on account of any 

dispute in respect of the Company, except the following : 
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Statute Demand 

 

Appellate forum where 

dues litigated 

 

Period 

to which 

the due 

pertains 

Remarks 

Income 

Tax Act 

1961. 

50,000 Pending before CIT(A)  

 

FY 2021-22 

AY 2022-23 

The demand was 

raised in the case 

of company M/s 

Ratnakar Securities 

Pvt Ltd, which is 

disputed in appeal. 

 

8. According to the information and explanations given to us there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 
9.  According to the information and explanations given to us,  

 
a. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or government or any government authority.  
b. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or 

in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.  
c. The term loans raised during the year have been applied for the purpose for 

this which those loans were obtained. 
d. On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the 

Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used 
during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.  

e. On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the 
Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.  

f. The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence 
reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable. 

 
10.   According to the information and explanations given to us,  

 
a. the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer during the period 

and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                        

b. During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or 
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
 
11. During the course of our examination of the books of the company carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us  

 
a. We have neither come across any material fraud on or by the company nor we 

are informed of any such cases by the management of the company.  
b. As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower 

complaints received by the Company during the period (and up to the date of 
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this report) while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedures. 

c. As represented to us by the Management, no report under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.  

 
 
12.  The company is not a Nidhi, therefore the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order is 

not applicable to the company. 
 

 
13. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and 

fair view of the Standalone financial statements and according to the information 

and explanations given to us,, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the 
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in 
the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

 
 

14. The Company have a formal Internal Audit system as . 
a. In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.  
b. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued 

to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing 
and extent of our audit procedures 

 
 

15. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and 
fair view of the Standalone financial statements and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered into any 
non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with them as referred to 
in section 192 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 
16.  

a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

b. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 

in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

17. According to the Standalone Financial Statements, the company has not incurred 
cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year 
under audit, hence the going concern of the Company is not affected by the same. 

 
18. There has been change in statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 
19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the Standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board 
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of Directors and     Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date.  

 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 

20. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true 
and fair view of the Standalone financial statements and according to the 
information and explanations given by the management, contribution to 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company.  

 
 

 
  For Maheshwari & Goyal 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 012946C 
 
 
 
 
Vamesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership No. 165075 
Date: 14th November, 2025.  
Place: Ahmedabad 

UDIN: 25165075BMMKHB1086 
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“ANNEXURE – B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Ratnakar 

Securities Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit 

of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that 

date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting and 

the Standards on auditing, both issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 

of the internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating 
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting. 

 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting with 

reference to the Standalone Financial statements and the preparation of Standalone 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that  

 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 

made only in accordance with authorization of Management and Directors of the 

Company; and  

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 

material effect on the Standalone financial statements. 

 

 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

  
  For Maheshwari & Goyal 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 012946C 

 
 
 
 
Vamesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 165075 
Date: 14th November, 2025.  
Place: Ahmedabad 

UDIN: 25165075BMMKHB1086 

   



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Standalone Balance Sheet 

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars 
 Note 
No. 

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

ASSETS
I. Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,10,655.93                    5,76,062.38                    
(b) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6 11,17,777.50                  10,63,530.55                  
(c) Investments 7 1,29,675.00                    1,29,675.00                    
(d) Loans 8 7,105.69                          32,992.86                        
(e) Trade Receivable 9 17,56,319.63                  13,31,549.88                  
(f) Other Financial asset 10 35,36,040.43                  26,30,361.66                  
Total Financial Assets 66,57,574.18                  57,64,172.28                  

II.Non Financial Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 11 1,95,031.01                    2,14,511.58                    
(b) Investment Property 12 98,960.00                        -                                    
(c) Other Non-financial asset 13 1,40,902.09                    1,09,809.52                    
Total Non Financial Assets 4,34,893.10                    3,24,321.10                    

Total Assets 70,92,467.28                  60,88,493.38                  
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
I. Financial Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables 14
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4,754.07                          4,478.43                          
  (ii) Total outstanding dues of others 37,57,812.53                  29,01,046.37                  

(b) Borrowings 15 7,52,203.02                    9,25,093.17                    
(c) Purchase Consideration payable 34 18,00,000.00                  18,00,000.00                  
(d) Other Financial Liability 16 1,08,540.00                    1,12,210.00                    
Total Financial Liabilities 64,23,309.62                  57,42,827.97                  

II. Non Financial Liabilities
 (a) Current tax liability (net) 25 1,02,500.00                    70,000.00                        
 (b) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 25 24,474.96                        26,868.25                        
 (c) Other Non Financial Liabilities 18 95,024.57                        78,781.81                        
 (d) Provision 19 67,270.23                        62,017.81                        
Total Non Financial Assets 2,89,269.76                    2,37,667.87                    

Equity
 (a) Equity Share capital 20 51,999.60                        51,999.60                        
 (b) Other Equity 21 3,27,884.40                    55,996.84                        
Total Equity 3,79,884.00                    1,07,996.44                    

Total Liabilities and Equity 70,92,467.28                  60,88,493.38                  
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 45)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing Director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Note 
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

I Revenue from operations
Commission and fees income 22 21,18,174.00                   17,96,604.00                 
Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net) 23 2,970.75                          2,836.99                         
Interest Income 24 1,25,745.00                     1,07,691.00                    

II Other income 25 11,503.39                        277.00                             
IV Total Income (I+II) 22,58,393.14                  19,07,408.99                 

V Expenses
Direct Expenses 26 12,15,458.00                   10,48,792.00                  
Employee benefits expense 27 2,22,259.45                     1,96,949.39                    
Finance costs 28 1,11,492.04                     72,517.22                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 39,520.30                        27,081.88                       
Other expenses 30 3,03,328.86                     3,30,130.40                    
Total expenses 18,92,058.65                  16,75,470.89                 

VI Profit before tax 3,66,334.51                     2,31,938.10                    
VII Tax expense

Current tax 31 1,02,500.00                     70,000.00                       
Adjustments in respect of current tax of earlier years -                                    100.00                             
Deferred tax (1,654.41)                         (6,226.51)                        
Total tax expense 1,00,845.59                     63,873.49                       

VIII Profit for the year 2,65,488.92                     1,68,064.61                   
Other comprehensive income

IX Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss:

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans 2,643.28                           7,834.61                          
Income tax effect on above (Deferred tax) 735.36                              2,179.59                          
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net 
of tax 3,378.64                          10,014.20                       

X Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,68,867.56                     1,78,078.81                   
XI Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

- Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 32 51.06                                32.32                               
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 45)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing Director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

Particulars



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Standalone Cash Flow

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
  Year ended

March 31, 2025 
  Year ended

March 31, 2024 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Profit before tax 3,66,334.51                 2,31,938.10                 

Adjustment for :
Depreciation 39,520.30                    27,081.88                    
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (5,684.39)                     -                                
Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net) (2,970.75)                     (2,836.99)                     
Interest expense on borrowings 1,11,492.04                 72,517.22                    

Operating Profit  before changes in working capital 5,08,691.69                 3,28,700.21                 

Adjustment for (Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables (4,24,769.75)               (3,28,936.92)               
Loans and Advances (Long term and Short Term) 25,887.17                    (4,952.49)                     
Other Financial Assets (9,05,678.77)               (16,26,914.80)             
Other Non Financial Assets (31,092.57)                  (29,071.03)                  

 Adjustment for Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating 
Liabilities 

Trade Payables 8,60,061.80                13,97,563.04              
Provision 8,631.06                      10,101.99                    
Borrowings (22,890.15)                  3,07,941.66                
Other Financial Liability (699.25)                        410.49                         
Other Non Financial Liability 16,242.76                    39,626.34                    

 Cash flow from operations after changes in working 
capital 

(4,74,307.72)               (2,34,231.72)               

Less: Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refunded (70,738.88)                  (39,778.99)                  
Net Cash Flow generated from Operating Activities (36,354.91)                  54,689.49                    

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intercorporate Deposit (1,50,000.00)               1,50,000.00                
Investment in Property (98,960.00)                  -                                
Maturity of Fixed Deposits
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,565.35)                  (36,266.28)                  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets 7,212.80                      
(Proceeds)/ Investment (from)/ in Bank deposits 
(Net) (54,246.95)                  97,510.95                    
 Purchase of investments -                                -                                

Net Cash Flow generated from Investing Activities (3,17,559.50)               2,11,244.67                



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Standalone Cash Flow

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
  Year ended

March 31, 2025 
  Year ended

March 31, 2024 
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest expense on borrowings (1,11,492.04)               (72,517.22)                  
Net Cash Flow generated from Financing Activities (1,11,492.04)               (72,517.22)                  

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
(4,65,406.46)               1,93,416.95                

 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 
5,76,062.38                3,82,645.44                

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of period 1,10,655.93                 5,76,062.38                 
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 45)

As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing Director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  0023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN:

Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Standalone Statement Of Changes In Equity 
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

1. Equity Share Capital
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Authorised

10,00,000.00             10,00,000.00             

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
51,999.60                   51,999.60                   

Total 51,999.60                   51,999.60                   

2. Other Equity
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(a) Share premium Account

Opening balance 3,95,477.38               3,95,477.38               
Closing balance 3,95,477.38               3,95,477.38               

(b) Generel Reserve
Opening balance 19,088.50                   19,000.00                   
Additions -                               88.50                           
Closing balance 19,088.50                   19,088.50                   

(c) Retained earnings
Opening balance 11,41,430.96             -33,337.44                  
Add: Profit for the year 2,65,488.92                1,68,064.61                

3,378.64                     10,014.20                   
-                               9,48,000.40                

3,020.00                     48,689.19                   
Closing balance 14,13,318.52             11,41,430.96             

(d) Capital reserve due to Merger (refer note 34)
Opening balance (15,00,000.00)           (15,00,000.00)           
Closing balance (15,00,000.00)           (15,00,000.00)           

Total (a+b+c+d) 3,27,884.40               -                               
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 45)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing Director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

 Add: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan approved by NCLT 
 Add : Elimination on account of merger due to Inter-company transaction 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 5,19,996 (Previous Year: 5,19,996) shares of INR 10 each 

 1,00,00,000(Previous Year: 1,00,00,000) shares of INR 10 each 

 Less: Re-measurement loss/(gain) on post employment benefit obligation 



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.       Company Information

2. Basis of preparation and Presentation:
2.1  Statement of Compliance: 

(i) Ratnakar Securities Limited (formerly, Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited ) ('the Company') is a listed public limited company
incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its registered office is situated at Shop-304,
Sankalp Square-2, Nr. Delux Appartment, Nr. Kalgi char rasta, Jalaram Temple, Paldi, Ahmedabad-380006.

(ii) The Equity shares of the Company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The shares were
suspended from trading ; the approved Resolution Plan facilitates the restoration of trading permission. The Company
was originally engaged in the business of software development. Following the Resolution Plan, the Company's main
objects have been altered to include the business of acting as share and stock brokers, depository participants, and
providing other financial and investment services .

(iii) The Company (then Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) was a Corporate Debtor and was admitted into the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) on 15.03.2021. This was in an application filed by an Operational Creditor under
Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016. The Resolution Plan noted "Lack of management control"
and "Non-Commitment of ex-management" as reasons for the company's state.

(iv) An application for initiation of CIRP was admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench
(‘NCLT’) vide order dated 15.03.2021 (CP (IB) 197 of 2020). The Resolution Plan, submitted by M/s. Ratnakar Securities
Private Limited (the 'Successful Resolution Applicant' or 'SRA') , was approved by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) with a
100% vote. The NCLT approved this Resolution Plan vide order dated 27.09.2022. The Scheme of Amalgamation, which
was an integral part of the Resolution Plan , was formally sanctioned by a subsequent NCLT order dated 11.09.2023.

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

The Standalone financial statements of The Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the financial years presented in the Standalone financial
statements, except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to the existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III of the Companies Act, as
amended from time to time, for NonBanking Financial Companies (‘NBFCs’) that are required to comply with Ind AS. The
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
except for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit plan assets and liabilities, and share based payments,
which are measured at fair value.

These Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts are rounded to the nearest
Hundreds with two decimals, except unless otherwise stated. Amount indicated as 0.00 are below rounding off threshold.



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

3.Summary of Material Accounting Policies:
3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Class of assets Useful Life (in years)
Building 60 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 to 10 Years
Computer Equipment 3 to 6 Years
Vehicles 8 to 10 Years

3.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, The Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets, other than
deferred tax assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, The Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Each CGU represents the
smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or CGUs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an assets less its estimated residual value. Based on management’s
evaluation, useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the act represent actual useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment.
Accordingly, The Company has used useful lives as mentioned in Schedule II of the Act to provide depreciation of
different class of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company provides depreciation on reducing balance method as
per the useful life mentioned in Schedule II of the Act. Any change in estimate is accounted on prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows : 

Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis from the date of such additions. Depreciation on assets
sold, discarded, disabled or demolished during the period is being provided up to the date in which such assets are sold,
discarded, disabled or demolished. 

Items of property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes or levies (net of recoverable taxes) and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the assets to their working condition for intended use. 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
“Capital work-in-progress”. 
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the
lower of their net carrying amount and net realisable value and are shown separately in the Standalone Financial
Statements. Any write-down in this regard is recognised immediately in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

3.3 Financial Instruments

(1) Initial Recognition and Measurements

(2) Classification and Subsequent Measurements
(a) Financial Assets

A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Standalone statement of
Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for
an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2
input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the
fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Standalone statement of
Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into
account when pricing the financial assets or financial liability.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of business model in which
they are held. This assessment is done for portfolio of the financial assets. The relevant categories are as below:

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU ) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying amounts
of the other assets of the CGU (or Company of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in earlier years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment
losses recognised for the asset/cash generating unit no longer exist or have decreased. However, the increase in carrying
amount of an asset due to reversal of an impairment loss is recognised to the extent it does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for that
asset/cash generating unit in earlier years. Reversal of impairment loss is directly recognised in the Standalone statement
of Profit and Loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. The financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when The Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

(i) At amortised cost

(ii) At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(iii) At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

(iv) Investment in Equity Instruments

(v) Impairment of Financial assets

Financial assets which are not measured at amortised cost or OCI and are held for trading are measured at FVTPL. Fair
value changes related to such financial assets are recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on The Company’s business model, The Company has classified its securities held for trade,Investment in Equity
Shares and Investment in Mutual Funds at FVTPL.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures are out of scope of Ind AS 109 and hence, The Company has
accounted for its investment in Subsidiaries at cost.

All other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments other than held for trading, The Company has irrevocable option
to present in Other Comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 - the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and 
• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL):-

Where The Company classifies equity instruments as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts of profit or loss from OCI to Standalone
statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is used. 

However, only in case of trade receivables, The Company applies the simplified approach which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 
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(vi) Derecognition of Financial Assets

(b) Financial Liabilities

(i) At amortised cost:

(ii) At Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

All financial liabilities of The Company are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Under the effective interest method, the future
cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the
maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over
the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding
effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest expense over the relevant period of
the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss. 

Fair value changes related to such financial liabilities are recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade and other payables are recognised at the transaction cost, which is its fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise;

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• the financial liability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with The Company’s
documented risk management.

Expected credit losses rate the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to The Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that The Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
through the expected life of that financial instrument. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which The Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that
financial asset.
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(iii) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

(iv) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

(3) Equity instruments

3.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single
comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, The Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when The Company has a legally enforceable right (not contingent on
future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by The Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Debt and equity instruments issued by The Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument as
per the relevant standards. Ordinary shares are classified as Equity when The Company has an un-conditional right to
avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and
absolute discretion of The Company and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever to that effect.
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(e) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value, with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

(a) The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS
115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

(i)      Commission and Fees Income from distribution of financial products 
(ii)    Brokerage Income from stock broking business

Commission and Fees Income relating to Distribution of Financial Products: Fees on distribution services are recognized
at a point in time when the service obligations are completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfilled. 

Commission and Fees Income relating to Stock Broking : Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in
time when performance obligation is satisfied. Income from broking activities is accounted for on the trade date of
transactions.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which The Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than
one performance obligation, The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to which The Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) The Company satisfies a performance obligation Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer which can be either at a point in
time or over time, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which The Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those services. 
(b) Revenue recognized are exclusive of goods and service tax, stamp duties and other levies by Security Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) and exchanges. 
(c) The Company recognises revenue from the following major sources: 

(d) In respect of other heads of income, it is accounted for to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. An entity shall recognise
a refund liability if the entity receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or all of that
consideration to the customer.

Dividend Income : Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment of the dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to The Company and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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3.5 Retirement and other Employees Benefit

(i) Short term Employee Benefits 

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan 

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan 

3.6 Current and deferred tax

(i) Current tax :
Tax on Income comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the reporting period in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the
liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

Employee benefits include short term employee benefits, provident fund, employee’s state insurance, and gratuity 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services
rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid. 

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution
plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are
rendered by the employees. The Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a
monthly basis. 

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “”Gratuity Plan””) covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees
at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit
method) at the end of each year. The Company's liability is un-funded. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit
liability comprising actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and, are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such re-measurements are not reclassified to the
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent year.
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(ii) Deferred tax :

3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset:

3.8 Leases
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

3.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deferred tax is recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of
assets and liabilities in Standalone Financial Statements and their respective tax bases at the reporting date, using the tax
rates and laws that are enacted or substantially enacted as on reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which The Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits subject to the assessment of reasonable certainty of recovery. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing
current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing taxation laws. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss is
recognised outside with the underlying items i.e. either in the statement of other comprehensive income or directly in
equity as relevant.

Provisions are recognised when The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. When The Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand
deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.10 Earning per share

3.11 Segment Reporting

3.12 Cash flow statement

3.13 Goods And Services Tax Paid On Acquisition Of Assets Or On Incurring Expenses

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the period attributable to equity share holder by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the period attributable to Equity Share holders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for effects of all dilutive
portential equity shares.

The Company's operating segments are reflected based on principal business activities, the nature of service, the
differing risks and returns, the organization structure, and the internal financial reporting system. The CODM reviews the
operations of The Company at the Company level, therefore the Company has primarily a single operating and reportable
segment namely,Broking,andrelated services. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures required to be furnished for 
a single reportable segment.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from regular operating, investing and financing activities of The Company are segregated based upon the available
information.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of
assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables,
respectively, in the balance sheet

3.14  Standards Issued And Effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated 31 March, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April, 2023. However, these
amendments does not have an impact on Financial Statements and material accounting policy information.
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material

accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after1 April, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the
amendment is insignificant in the Company’s financial statements.
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition

of accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on
or after 01 April, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its financial statement.

3.14  Standards notified but Not Effective
 There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

4. Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements:

4.1  Business Model Assessment: 

4.2  Fair Value Of Financial Instrument: 

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity
and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,
correlation and volatility.

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
Companys of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where
the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions
based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they arise.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate
changes in estimates are recognised in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods. Following are estimates and judgements that have significant
impact on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet:
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4.2  Fair Value Of Financial Instrument: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at
measurement date
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) that the
Company can access at measurement date.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity
and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,
correlation and volatility.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(a) Balances with banks 

- in Current accounts 1,10,655.22                 5,76,061.67                 
(b) Cash on hand 0.71                              0.71                              
Total (a+b) 1,10,655.93                 5,76,062.38                

6 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

6,67,000.00                 8,43,000.00                 

Bank Deposits with remaining maturities more than 12 months* 4,33,000.00                 2,07,000.00                 
Interest accrued but not due on Bank Deposits 17,777.50                    13,530.55                    
Total 11,17,777.50              10,63,530.55              

* Break up of Fixed Deposits with banks

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
2,00,000.00                 1,50,000.00                 

1,00,000.00                 1,00,000.00                 

2,75,000.00                 2,75,000.00                 

7 Investments

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Unquoted 

Investment in Equity shares of Subsidiaries 1,29,675.00                 1,29,675.00                 
Total 1,29,675.00                 1,29,675.00                

8 Loans

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(measured at amortised cost) 

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans and Advances to Employees 7,105.69                      32,992.86                    

Total 7,105.69                      32,992.86                    

Bank Deposits with remaining maturities more than 3 months  
but less than 12 months*

 Fixed Deposits pledged against Bank Guarantee 
 Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for securing overdraft 
facilities 
 Fixed Deposits under lien with Stock Exchange to meet margin 
requirement 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 
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9 Trade Receivables

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 Unsecured :
 Receivable from Clients/Customers

Considered good 17,56,319.63               13,31,549.88              
Significant increase in credit risk -                                -                                
Less : Allowance for expected credit Loss -                                -                                

Total 17,56,319.63              13,31,549.88              

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

 Considered 
good 

 Considered 
good 

  Considered doubtful 

Less than 6 months 17,54,761.02                    -                                -                                
6 months-1 year 79.18                                 -                                -                                
1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                
2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                
More than 3 years 1,479.43                            -                                -                                

 Total 17,56,319.63                    -                                -                                

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

 Considered 
good 

 Considered 
good 

  Considered doubtful 

Less than 6 months 13,30,070.45                    -                                -                                
6 months-1 year -                                     -                                -                                
1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                
2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                
More than 3 years 1,479.43                            -                                -                                

 Total 13,31,549.88                    -                                -                                

10 Other Financial assets

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(measured at amortised cost) 

Deposits with Exchange 90,000.00                    90,000.00                    
Margins with Exchanges and clearing member 34,30,919.77               25,30,041.96              
Less : Impairment Allowances -                                -                                

35,20,919.77              26,20,041.96              
Deposit with Vendors 1,944.76                      1,364.66                      
Less : Impairment Allowances -                                -                                

1,944.76                      1,364.66                      
Interest accrued but not due on Other deposits 13,175.90                    8,955.04                      
Total 35,36,040.43              26,30,361.66              

 Particulars 

 Particulars 
Undisputed TR Disputed TR

Disputed TR

 Particulars 

 Particulars 
Undisputed TR
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Particulars / Assets  Buildings 
 Furniture and 

Fittings 
 Motor Vehicles 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Computers 
 Electricals 

and 
Installments 

 Total 

Gross Block (At Cost) 100.00                 
At 31 March 2023 2,07,996.73          5,585.59         32,971.70           5,136.99         10,599.62         271.67         2,62,562.30          
Additions -                         -                  33,102.06           2,557.22         607.00               -               36,266.28             
Disposals -                         -                  -                       -                  -                     -               -                         
At 31 March 2024 2,07,996.73          5,585.59         66,073.76           7,694.21         11,206.62         271.67         2,98,828.58          
Additions -                         -                  -                       405.00            21,160.35         -               21,565.35             
Disposals -                         -                  4,691.71             -                  -                     -               4,691.71               
At 31 March 2025 2,07,996.73          5,585.59         61,382.05           8,099.21         32,366.97         271.67         3,15,702.22          

-                         
Depreciation Fund -                         
At 31 March 2023 27,929.17             2,517.54         17,380.34           1,538.19         7,747.44            122.45         57,235.13             
Charge for the year 17,112.51             794.21            4,926.36             2,281.33         1,928.83            38.63           27,081.87             
Disposals -                         -                  -                       -                  -                     -               -                         
At 31 March 2024 45,041.68             3,311.75         22,306.70           3,819.52         9,676.27            161.08         84,317.00             
Charge for the year 15,486.25             588.62            13,670.37           1,906.43         7,840.00            28.63           39,520.30             
Disposals -                         -                  3,166.09             -                  -                     -               3,166.09               
At 31 March 2025 60,527.93             3,900.37         32,810.98           5,725.95         17,516.27         189.71         1,20,671.21          

-                         
Net Block -                         
At 31 March 2024 1,62,955.05          2,273.84         43,767.06           3,874.69         1,530.35            110.59         2,14,511.58          
At 31 March 2025 1,47,468.80          1,685.22         28,571.07           2,373.26         14,850.70         81.96           1,95,031.01          



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

12 Investment Property:

Particulars
 as at 31st 

March, 2024 
 Additions 

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

Land -                     98,960.00              98,960.00          
Total -                     98,960.00              98,960.00          

Fair value
Estimation of fair value of Investment properties

 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

1,45,000.00      

Particulars

Land 
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13 Other Non-Financial asset

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Prepaid expenses 9,402.31                      10,583.52                    
GST Credit Receivable 243.58                          1,026.25                      
Advance tax and TDS receivable 1,03,429.58                 69,433.17                    
Advances to suppliers 4,786.02                      4,661.05                      
Other Receivable 23,040.60                    24,105.54                    
Total 1,40,902.09                 1,09,809.52                

14 Trade Payable

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

-Payable to Vendors (MSE) 4,754.03                      4,478.43                      

-Payable to Vendors 1,41,762.60                 1,50,379.09                 
-Payable to Clients 36,10,734.89               27,46,507.09              
-Payable to Exchanges 5,315.05                      4,160.19                      

Total 37,62,566.56              29,05,524.80              

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars  MSE undisputed  Others undisputed  Total 

(i) Unbilled Dues -                                     -                                -                                
(ii) Others
Less than 1 year 4,754.03                            37,57,812.53               37,62,566.56              
1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                
2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                
More than 3 years -                                     -                                -                                

Total (i + ii) 4,754.03                           37,57,812.53              37,62,566.56              

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars  MSE undisputed  Others undisputed  Total 

(i) Unbilled Dues -                                     -                                -                                
(ii) Others
Less than 1 year 4,478.43                            29,01,046.37               29,05,524.80              
1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                
2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                
More than 3 years -                                     -                                -                                

Total (i + ii) 4,478.43                           29,01,046.37              29,05,524.80              

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 
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4,754.03                      4,478.43                      
-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

15 Borrowings

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(measured at amortised cost) 

 Secured Borrowings 
Vehicle loans from banks (note a) 24,975.49                    32,232.98                    

7,27,227.53                 6,92,860.19                 

Unsecured Borrowings repayable on demand
 Loan from Director -                                50,000.00                    
 Inter-Corporate Borrowing -                                1,50,000.00                 

Total 7,52,203.02                 9,25,093.17                

(a) Security and terms of repayment of borrowings from banks:

(b) Security against borrowings repayable on demand from Financial Institution:

16 Other Financial liabilities

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 Security deposits received 1,08,540.00                1,11,040.00                
Employee Liabilities -                                1,170.00                     
Total 1,08,540.00                1,12,210.00                

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
       Principal
       Interest
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 
16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006;

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest 
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year

 Loans from Financial Institution repayable on demand (note b) 

Particulars

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 The aforesaid term loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicles, repayable in 84 monthly 
instalments  

 Secured against hypothecation of mortgage of property / mortgage of Securities/ lien on fixed deposits. 
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17      Deferred Tax Assets /Liabilities (Net) Deferred Tax Assets /Liabilities (Net)
(a) Deferred Tax Relates To The Following:

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

17,980.65                    15,075.20                    
-3,989.78                     -3,254.42                     
10,484.09                    15,047.47                    
24,474.96                    26,868.25                    

(b) The Movement In Deferred Tax Assets And Liabilities During The Year:

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
26,868.25                    35,274.61                    
-1,654.41                     -6,226.51                     

-735.36                        -2,179.59                     
24,478.49                    26,868.52                    

(c) Income Tax Expense

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
1,02,500.00                 70,000.00                    

-1,654.41                     -6,226.51                     
-                                100.00                         

1,00,845.59                 63,873.49                    

(d) Income Tax Recognised In Other Comprehensive Income)

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

735.36                          2,179.59                      
735.36                          2,179.59                      

18 Other non-financial liabilities

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
34,761.74                    26,162.68                    

 Other Payables 60,262.83                    52,619.13                    
 Security deposit -                                -                                
Total 95,024.57                    78,781.81                    

 Advance received from customers 

 Particulars 

Total

 Particulars 

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans

 Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities
Gratuity 

Total 
Depreciation

Deferred tax asset related to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income during the year:

Income tax relating to re-measurement gains on defined 
Total

Deferred tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in 
Deferred tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in 
Closing balance - Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

 Particulars 

Opening balance - Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

 Particulars 

Current tax taxes
Deferred tax charge/(income)
Taxes on earlier years
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19 Provision

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 Provision for Gratuity 67,270.23                    62,017.81                    
Total 67,270.23                    62,017.81                    

20 Equity Share Capital

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Authorised

1,00,00,000(Previous Year: 1,00,00,000) shares of INR 10 each 10,00,000.00               10,00,000.00              

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
51,999.60                    51,999.60                    

Total 51,999.60                    51,999.60                    

(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares

 No. of Shares  Amount 

 As at 31st March 2023 1,00,00,000.00           1,00,00,000.00           
 Add: Issued during the year -                                -                                

-94,80,004.00             -99,48,000.40             

 As at 31st March 2024 5,19,996.00                 51,999.60                    
 Add: Issued during the year -                                -                                

 As at 31st March 2025 5,19,996.00                 51,999.60                    

(ii)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares

 Less: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan 
approved by NCLT 

 5,19,996 (Previous Year: 5,19,996) shares of INR 10 each 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each shareholder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(iii)

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 No. of shares 74,556                          74,556                         

% of shareholding 14.34% 14.34%
 No. of shares 55,317                          55,317                         

% of shareholding 10.64% 10.64%
 No. of shares 25,000                          25,000                         

% of shareholding 4.81% 4.81%
 No. of shares 16,562                          16,562                         

% of shareholding 3.19% 3.19%
 No. of shares 12,500                          12,500                         

% of shareholding 2.40% 2.40%
 No. of shares 1                                    1                                   

% of shareholding 0.00% 0.00%
 No. of shares 41,309                          41,309                         

% of shareholding 7.94% 7.94%
 No. of shares 28,267                          28,267                         

% of shareholding 5.44% 5.44%

(iv)

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
 No. of shares 74,556                          74,556                         

% of shareholding 14.34% 14.34%
 No. of shares 55,317                          55,317                         

% of shareholding 10.64% 10.64%
 No. of shares 41,309                          41,309                         

% of shareholding 7.94% 7.94%
 No. of shares 28,267                          28,267                         

% of shareholding 5.44% 5.44%

(v)

(vi)

 Particulars 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

 MANSUKHBHAI J. SHAH  

 DILIP M. SHAH  

 MANJULABEN MANSUKHLAL 
SHAH  

 DILIP MANSUKHBHAI SHAH – 
HUF  

 ALPA DILIP SHAH  

 Ashit M shah 

 Shah A M 

 MANSUKHBHAI JASKARAN 
SHAH-HUF 

Details of share held by promotors in the Company

 Particulars 

 MANSUKHBHAI J. SHAH  

 MANJULABEN MANSUKHLAL 
SHAH  
 MANSUKHBHAI JASKARAN 
SHAH-HUF 

 DILIP M. SHAH  

 The Company has not bought back any shares and issued any bonus shares for consideration other than cash 
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date. 

The promoters presented in the Note above pertain to the past promoters of Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited 
(MSTL).Pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law 
Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench, by its order dated 11th September, 2023 , Ratnakar Securities Private 
Limited ("RSPL" or "Transferor Company") has amalgamated with Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited ("Transferee 
Company").
As the effect of the approved Resolution Plan and the Scheme of Amalgamation are yet to be given effect as 
on the year end, the classification of promoters continues as per the pre-acquisition structure. Upon giving 
effect to the Resolution Plan and Scheme of Amalgamation and carrying out relevant formalities, the existing 
promoters of MSTL will be reclassified under the “Public” category, and the promoters of RSPL, to whom 
shares are to be issued under the Resolution Plan, will be classified as the “Promoters” of the Company.
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21 Other Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(a) Share premium Account

Opening balance 3,95,477.38                 3,95,477.38                 
Additions -                                -                                
Closing balance 3,95,477.38                 3,95,477.38                

(b) Generel Reserve
Opening balance 19,088.50                    19,000.00                    
Additions -                                88.50                            
Closing balance 19,088.50                    19,088.50                    

(c) Retained earnings
Opening balance 11,41,430.96               -33,337.44                   
Add: Profit for the year 2,65,488.92                 1,68,064.61                 

3,378.64                      10,014.20                    
-                                9,48,000.40                 

3,020.00                      48,689.19                    
Closing balance 14,13,318.52              11,41,430.96              

(d) Capital reserve due to Merger (refer note 34)
Opening balance -15,00,000.00             -15,00,000.00             
Additions -                                -                                
Closing balance -15,00,000.00             -15,00,000.00             

Total (a+b+c+d) 3,27,884.40                 55,996.84                    
RSL to RCPL

 Add: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan 

 Particulars 

 Less: Re-measurement loss/(gain) on post employment 

 Add : Elimination on account of merger due to Inter-
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22 Commission and fees income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

17,01,017.00          14,77,224.00        
60,019.00                33,892.00             
83,554.00                79,742.00             

Other Operating Income:
2,73,584.00             2,05,746.00          

           21,18,174.00         17,96,604.00 

23 Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

-                            -                         
2,970.75                  2,836.99                

                   2,970.75                 2,836.99 

24 Interest Income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

72,374.00                62,903.00             
53,371.00                44,788.00             

             1,25,745.00            1,07,691.00 

25 Other Income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
5,819.00                  277.00                   

Profit on Sale of Assets 5,684.39                  
-                            -                         

11,503.39                277.00                   

Total

Particulars

Interest income on financial assets - measured at amortised 
cost

Particulars

Mutual Fund Income

Late payment charges

Miscellaneous income

On financial instruments measured at fair value through 

Deposits with Banks
Clearing member

Total

 Investments
Other financial assets and liabilities

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Income from Depository services

Commission and Fees Income from :
Stock broking and allied services
Distribution of mutual fund products

Total
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26 Direct Expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Sub brokerage            10,78,287.00            9,17,423.00 
Demat charges              1,37,171.00            1,31,369.00 

12,15,458.00          10,48,792.00        

27 Employee Benefits Expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
2,11,736.01             1,86,519.11          

Contribution to Provident Fund 2,627.74                  2,507.88                
Gratuity Expense (refer not 35) 7,895.70                   7,922.40                

2,22,259.45            1,96,949.39          

28 Finance Costs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

1,11,492.04          72,517.22          
1,11,492.04            72,517.22             

29 Depreciation expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

39,520.30                27,081.88             
39,520.30                27,081.88             

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Salaries and wages

Total

Interest Expense on financial liabilities (measured at 
amortised cost)

Interest on Borrowings
Total

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 
11)
Total

Particulars

Particulars
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30 Other expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Rent                  18,148.00               18,061.00 
Software annual expense                  82,356.00               73,138.00 
Printing and stationary                  13,068.00               13,691.00 
Payment to auditor                    1,500.00                 4,350.00 
Other Expenses              1,66,853.00            1,96,407.00 
bank charges                    8,632.00                 6,431.00 
Electric expenses                    7,624.00                 7,420.00 
Advertisement Exp                         50.00                              -   
Office exp                                -                         75.00 
Listing Fees on BSE                    3,250.00                 3,250.00 
Depository Fees                       347.29                 5,764.20 
Share Transfer Agent Fees                       333.20                     261.60 
Legal & Professional Exp.                       455.00                     410.00 
Prepaid expense                                -                         75.00 
GST Expense                       712.37                     796.60 
Total 3,03,328.86             3,30,130.40           

Payment to auditors (Net of GST credit)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
1,500.00                  4,350.00                

31 Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and loss:

Current Tax
 In respect of current year 1,02,500.00             70,000.00             
 In respect of earlier year

Deferred Tax
 In respect of current year (1,654.41)                 (6,226.51)              

Particulars

For Statutory Audit

Particulars

Particulars
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32 Earnings Per Share

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
2,65,488.92             1,68,064.61          

                   5,19,996                 5,19,996 
                        10.00                       10.00 

51.06                        32.32                     

33 Contingnet Liabilities and Capital Commitments
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
2,00,000.00             2,00,000.00          

Nil Nil

Particulars

Particulars

(a) Contingent liabilities
(b) Capital Commitments

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. In 
Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding
Nominal value per share (In Rs.)
Earnings per share

- Basic and Diluted (In Rs.)
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34 Business Combination
Business combination under common control entities:

Merger of Ratnakar Securities Private Limited ("RSPL")

Business combination involving companies in which all the combining companies are ultimately controlled by the same holding party, before
and after the business combination, are treated as per the pooling of interest method.

The pooling of interest method involves the following: 
(i) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 
(ii) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
(iii) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred

from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.
The identity of the reserves is preserved, and they appear in the financial statements of the transferee company in the same form in which
they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor company. The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of
share capital of the transferor company is transferred to capital reserve.

Pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench, by
its order dated 11th September, 2023 , Ratnakar Securities Private Limited ("RSPL" or "Transferor Company") has amalgamated with
Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited ("Transferee Company").
The Appointed Date for the amalgamation is 27th September, 2022. The Effective Date of the Scheme is the date on which the certified
NCLT order is filed with the Registrar of Companies.

The amalgamation has been accounted for using the pooling of interest method as prescribed under Ind AS 103 (Business Combinations) for
entities under common control. All assets and liabilities of RSPL have been recorded at their carrying values as of the Appointed Date.
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(A) Purchase consideration transferred:

Based on the 30,00,000 equity shares of the Transferor Company, the total consideration is:
Amount

Consideration payable to shareholders of RSPL
15,00,000.00

3,00,000.00
18,00,000.00

B) Details of assets acquired and liabilities assumed from RSPL as on Appointed Date:
(All amounts in ₹100, as per the provided accounting entry)

Amount (in Hundreds)
Asset
Financial asset

1,89,821.34                       
11,13,428.67                     

1,29,675.00                       
8,02,785.50                       
1,00,312.09                       

11,88,474.01                     
Total Financial asset (a) 35,24,496.61                    
Non-Financial asset

1,53,994.53                       
2,40,006.18                       

Total Non financial assert (b) 3,94,000.71                       
Total Asset (c =a+b) 39,18,497.32                    

Loans
Trade Receivable
Other Financial asset

Property, plant and equipment
Other Non-financial asset

Total Purchase Consideration

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Investments

1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each 
30,00,000 6% OFCRPS of ₹10 each

Particulars

Particulars

As per the Scheme, the consideration for the amalgamation was discharged by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of RSPL as
follows:
(i) 5 (five) new equity shares of ₹10 each for every 1 (one) equity share of ₹10 each held in RSPL .
(iI) 1 (one) 6% Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Preference Share (OFCRPS) of ₹10 each for every 1 (one) equity share of ₹10 each
held in RSPL .
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Amount
Liabilities
Financial liabilities

17,38,330.90                     
1,14,642.33                       

Total Financial liabilities (d) 18,52,973.23                    

Non-financial Liabilities
90,000.00                          

2,49,551.12                       
Total non financial liabilities (e) 3,39,551.12                       
Total liabilities (f =d+e) 21,92,524.35                    

Total net identifiable assets acquired (c-f) 17,25,972.96                    

Details of reserves acquired 
14,25,972.53                     

Total reserves acquired 14,25,972.53                     

(C) Net Impact due to Merger:

Amount
Total net identifiable assets acquired 17,25,972.96                    

14,25,972.53
Total Purchase Consideration 18,00,000.00

15,00,000.00

Total reserves acquired

Net impact transferred to Capital Reserve

Borrowings

Current tax liability (net)
Other Non Financial Liabilities

The difference between the consideration paid and the share capital of the transferor company has been transferred to Capital Reserve, as
per the pooling of interest method.

Particulars

Profit & loss account / General Reserve

Trade Payables

Particulars
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The net impact debited to Capital Reserve is the difference between the Total Purchase Consideration (₹ 18,00,00,000.00) and the Share
Capital of the Transferor Company (₹ 3,00,00,000.00 ). The assets, liabilities, and reserves of the transferor company are recognized at their
respective carrying values.
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35 Detail of Employees Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Los

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
 Contribution to provident and other funds                  2,627.74                  2,507.88 

Defined Benefits Plans 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Balance at the beginning of the year                62,017.81 61,930.02               
Current service cost                  4,344.12 3,525.37                 
Interest cost                  4,186.20 4,397.03                 
Remeasurement (gain)/loss:

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments -3,447.38                -8,372.00                
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes financial in assumptions 804.10                    537.39                    

Benefits paid -634.62                   -                           
Past service cost -                           -                           
Balance at the Closing of the year 67,270.23               62,017.81               

Particulars

The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Financial Statement:

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. The Company's gratuity scheme (unfunded) provides for a lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment, or on termination of employment. The amount is equivalent to 15 days salary (Basic + DA) payable for
each completed year of service, as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 , subject to a ceiling of ₹ 2,000,000. Vesting occurs upon completion
of 5 years of service.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation was measured using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Particulars

 (i) Present value of defined benefit obligation
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For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Current Liability 7,695.88                 46,691.82               
Non Current Liability 59,574.35               15,325.99               
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 67,270.23               62,017.81               

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Current service cost
Interest cost 4,344.12                 3,525.37                 
Past service cost -                           -                           
(Expected contributions by the employees) 3,998.42                 4,397.03                 
(Gains)/losses on curtailments and settlements -                           -                           
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8,342.54                 7,922.40                 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in Liability 2,643.28                 7,834.61                 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income -                           -                           
Change in asset ceiling -                           -                           
Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income -                           -                           
Total cost of the defined benefit plan for the year 2,643.28                 7,834.61                 

 (iii) Cost of the defined benefit plan for the year

Particulars

(iv) Recognised in other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Particulars

 (ii) Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
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(v) Experience Adjustment
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year 67,270.23               62,017.81               
Plan assets at the end of year -                           -                           
Net Obligation at the end of year -67,270.23             -62,017.81             
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities gain/(loss) -3,447.38                -8,372.00                
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to changes in assumptions 804.10                    537.39                    

 (vi) Principal actuarial assumptions:

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.75% 7.10%
Expected rate of salary increase (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality
Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult. 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult. 

Rate of employees turnover (p.a.) 5% to 1% 5% to 1%
Retirement age 60 60

Particulars

Particulars

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, the salary growth rate and the average life
expectancy. The assumptions used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Estimates of future salary increase takes into account: inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market The plan exposes the Company to significant actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk: 
Inflation risk - A significant proportion of the defined benefit liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the inflation rate will increase the Company's liability. 
Interest rate risk-The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate prevailing market yields of Indian government securities. A
decrease in discount rate will increase the Company's defined benefit liability.
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For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Discount Rate - 1 percent increase 65,09,200 60,32,311
Discount Rate - 1 percent decrease 69,85,375 64,01,517
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent increase 69,82,118 63,99,709
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent decrease 65,07,783 60,30,690

(ix) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments
The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
7,69,588 46,69,182

65,533 53,513
63,272 51,667
61,090 49,884
58,982 48,163

18,08,473 97,654

 (vii) Sensitivity analysis in respect of the actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit obligation is given below:

Year 4
Year 5
Year 6 to Year 10

Particulars

Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in Defined Benefit Obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market
conditions at the accounting date. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been calculated using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the balance sheet. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
the assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

(viii) The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025 is 16 years. (as at March 31, 2024 is 16 years)

Expected Payments (Undiscounted)

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
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36 Related Party Disclosures
(a) Names Of Related Parties And Nature Of Relationship

Director/Key Management Personnel

Enterprises in which director and its Relatives are interested

Wholly owned subsidiary Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited

(b) Details Of Transactions With Related Party In The Ordinary Course Of Business For The Year Ended
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Salary expense

Mr. Ajay Shah 30,000.00               30,000.00               
Mr. Kushal Shah 18,000.00               4,500.00                 
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 30,000.00               30,000.00               

Loan Taken
Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited 1,65,000.00           25,000.00               
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 7,42,000.00           1,50,000.00           

Loan Repaid
Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited 9,08,214.39           6,868.51                 
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 8,92,000.00           -                           

Interest Paid
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 18,015.99               7,631.68                 
Mr. Ajay Shah 19,290.00               17,050.00               

Remissiory 
Nirmi Kushal Shah 62,630.00               51,280.00               

Professional Fees
Mr. Kushal Shah -                           11,250.00               

Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited
Kushal Ajay Shah

Ajay J Shah HUF

Nirmi Kushal Shah

Particulars

Relationship

Mr. Ajay Shah

Name of Related Party

Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah
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For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Rent expense

Ajay J Shah 10,800.00               10,800.00               
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 4,800.00                 4,800.00                 
Ajay J Shah HUF 1,440.00                 1,440.00                 

(c) Amount Due To/From Related Party
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Other payables

Mr. Ajay Shah 30,344.70               820.44                    
Mr. Kushal Shah 15,473.96               -                           
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 24,410.78               -                           
Nirmi Kushal Shah 4,703.31                 6,708.26                 
Ajay J Shah HUF -                           120.00                    

Borrowing
Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited -                           1,50,000.00           

Particulars

Particulars
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37 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

ASSETS  
I. Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 1,10,655.93           -                        1,10,655.93           5,76,062.38           -                           5,76,062.38           
(b) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents6,69,777.50           4,48,000.00        11,17,777.50         8,41,530.55           2,22,000.00           10,63,530.55         
(c) Investments 1,29,675.00           -                        1,29,675.00           1,29,675.00           -                           1,29,675.00           
(d) Loans 557.04                    6,548.66              7,105.69                 26,967.96               6,024.90                 32,992.86               
(e) Trade Receivable 17,54,840.20         1,479.43              17,56,319.63         13,30,070.45         1,479.43                 13,31,549.88         
(f) Other Financial asset 30,80,012.34         4,56,028.09        35,36,040.43         24,00,857.33         2,29,504.33           26,30,361.66         

Total Financial Assets 57,45,518.00         9,12,056.18        66,57,574.18         53,05,163.67         4,59,008.66           57,64,172.33         
II.Non Financial Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1,95,031.01        1,95,031.01           -                           2,14,511.58           2,14,511.58           
(b) Investment Property -                           98,960.00           98,960.00               -                           -                           -                           
(c) Other Non-financial asset 1,40,902.09        1,40,902.09           1,09,809.52           1,09,809.52           

Total Non Financial Assets -                           4,34,893.10        4,34,893.10           -                           3,24,321.10           3,24,321.10           
Total Assets 57,45,518.00         13,46,949.28      70,92,467.28         53,05,163.67         7,83,329.76           60,88,493.43         

37 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

I. Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables

 (i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises4,754.07                 -                        4,754.07                 4,478.43                 -                           4,478.43                 
 (ii) Total outstanding dues of others 37,57,812.53         -                        37,57,812.53         29,01,046.37         -                           29,01,046.37         
(b) Borrowings 6,85,471.55           66,731.47           7,52,203.02           9,25,093.17           -                           9,25,093.17           
(c) Purchase Consideration payable 18,00,000.00         -                        18,00,000.00         18,00,000.00         18,00,000.00         
(d) Other Financial Liability 1,08,540.00           1,08,540.00           1,12,210.00           -                           1,12,210.00           
Total Financial Liabilities 63,56,578.15         66,731.47           64,23,309.62         39,42,827.97         18,00,000.00         57,42,827.97         

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
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Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

 (a) Current tax liability (net) 1,02,500.00           -                        1,02,500.00           70,000.00               -                           70,000.00               
 (b) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 24,474.96               -                        24,474.96               26,868.25               -                           26,868.25               
 (c) Other Non Financial Liabilities 95,024.57               -                        95,024.57               78,781.81               78,781.81               
 (d) Provision 67,270.23               67,270.23               46,691.82               15,325.99               62,017.81               
Total Non Financial Assets 2,89,269.76           -                        2,89,269.76           2,22,341.88           15,325.99               2,37,667.87           
Total Liabilities  (I+II) 66,45,847.91         66,731.47           67,12,579.38         41,65,169.85         18,15,325.99         59,80,495.84         

38 Financial Instruments
(i) Capital Management

As at March 31, 
2025

As at March 31, 
2024

Borrowings including debt securities 7,52,203.02           9,25,093.17           
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 5) -1,10,655.93          -5,76,062.38          
Net Debt (i) 6,41,547.09           3,49,030.79           
Total equity (ii) 3,79,884.00           1,07,996.44           
 Total capital + net debt (iii=i+ii) 10,21,431.09         4,57,027.23           
 Gearing ratio (i)/(iii) 62.81% 76.37%

The Company's objective for capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphold investor,
creditor and customer confidence, to ensure future development of its business and remain going concern. The Company is focused on keeping strong capital
base to ensure independence and sustained growth in business. The Company determines the capital management requirement based on annual operating
plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash
equivalents as presented in the balance sheet. The funding requirements are predominately met through equity and revenue generated from operations. The
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. 

Particulars

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
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(ii) Category-wise financial instruments:

Amortised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total value Total fair value
Financial Aseet as at March 31, 2025

Cash and Cash equivalents -                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,53,847.96        -                           -                           2,53,847.96           2,53,847.96           
Trade receivables 7,105.69              -                           -                           7,105.69                 7,105.69                 
Loans 58,597.36           -                           -                           58,597.36               58,597.36               
Investments -                        -                           58,982.28               58,982.28               11,32,777.50         
Other financial assets 17,62,673.67      -                           -                           17,62,673.67         17,62,673.67         

Total 20,82,224.68      -                           58,982.28               21,41,206.96         32,15,002.17         
Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2025

Trade payables -                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Other financial liabilities 37,62,416.36      -                           -                           37,62,416.36         37,62,416.36         

Total 37,62,416.36      -                           -                           37,62,416.36         37,62,416.36         

Amortised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL
Total carrying 

value
Total fair value

Financial Aseet as at March 31, 2024
Cash and Cash equivalents -                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6,02,682.66        -                           -                           6,02,682.66           6,02,682.66           
Trade receivables 32,992.86           -                           -                           32,992.86               32,992.86               
Loans 1,46,072.10        -                           -                           1,46,072.10           1,46,072.10           
Investments -                        -                           1,26,143.13           1,26,143.13           10,78,530.55         
Other financial assets 14,24,803.36      -                           -                           14,24,803.36         14,24,803.36         

Total 22,06,550.98      -                           -                           23,32,694.10         32,85,081.53         
Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Trade payables -                        -                           -                           -                           -                           
Other financial liabilities 29,05,511.10      -                           -                           29,05,511.10         29,05,511.10         

Total 29,05,511.10      -                           -                           29,05,511.10         29,05,511.10         
For description of the Company's financial instrument risks, including risk management objectives and policies is given in, Note 38.The methods used to
measure financial assets and liabilities reported at fair value are described in the note below.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025Particulars

As at March 31, 2024
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(iii) Fair Value Hierarchy

(a) The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation techniques:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At fair value through profit or loss
Investments 58,982.28               -                           -                           -                           
Total 58,982.28               -                           -                           -                           

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At fair value through profit or loss
Investments 1,26,143.13           -                           -                           -                           
Total 1,26,143.13           -                           -                           -                           

(b) Financial Instrument measured at Amortised Cost

39 Financial Risk Management, Objective and Policies

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet are Companyed into three levels of a fair valuehierarchy, The three levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Financial Assets as at March 31, 2025

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal(or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of hether that price is directly observable or estimated using a 

Financial Assets as at March 31, 2024

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received
or settled.  

The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of The Company's risk management framework. The
Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Risk management policies have been
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by The Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review and reflect the
changes in the policy accordingly. The Company's Management reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by The
Company.
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(a) Credit Risk:
Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to The Company. Credit Risk arises principally
from The Company's cash and bank balances, trade receivables, investments, securities held for trade, loans, and security deposits. The carrying amounts of
financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. Credit risk assessment on various components is described below: 

(i) Trade receivables The Company's trade receivables primarily include receivables from asset management companies (AMCs) for services provided, 
receivable from stock exchanges (for trade executed on behalf of customers) as well as clients and receivable from insurance companies. The Company 
has not made any provision on ECL on account of receivables from AMCs, Stock exchanges and Insurance companies. The Company's management as 
establised accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts are regularly monitored. The Company has a dedicated risk management team, 
which monitors the positions, exposures and margins on a continuous basis.
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, investments and Securities held for trade The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents, bank 
deposits, investment, and securities held for trade with reputed banks, financial institutions, and corporates. The credit risk on these instruments is 
limited because the counterparties are banks and high credit rated financial institutions and corporates assigned by credit rating agencies.

(iii) Security Deposits and Loans This consists of loans given to Employees and Security Deposits given to lessors as well as to utility providers like 
Electricity companies. These carries limited credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Company's historical experience of dealing with these 
parties.

(iv) Expected Credit Loss (ECL): The Company follows simplified ECL method in case of Trade Receivables and The Company recognises lifetime expected 
losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. The Company assesses the provision for ECL on each reporting dates. For the 
purpose of computation of ECL, the term default implies an event where amount due towards margin requirement and/or mark to market losses for 
which the client was unable to provide funds/collaterals, within 90 days of its due, to bridge the shortfall, the same is termed as margin call triggered. The 
Company assesses allowance for expected credit losses for Loans and other financial assets. The ECL allowance is based upon 12 months expected credit 
losses. These carries very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Company's historical experience of dealing with these parties. 
Credit Risk on Other Financial assets is considered insignificant considering the nature of such assets and absence of counterparty risk.
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(b) Market Risk:

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Price Risk

As at March 31, 
2025 

As at March 31, 
2024

5,898.23                 12,614.31               
-5,898.23                -12,614.31             

(c) Liquidity risk:

Changes in Prices of 
Investments 

10%
-10%

Impact on profit or loss

 Profit before tax increased by
 Profit before tax Decreased by

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other
financial assets. The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities. In doing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions. The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with
expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Company's short-term, medium-term, and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and by continuously monitoring cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

(iii) Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. Interest rate risk primarily arises from investments in debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities. The Company's investments 
in debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities are primarily short-term, which do not expose it to significant interest rate risk. Additionally, since there 
are no external borrowings, The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk in with respect to borrowings.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include foreign currency receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been
no change in the measurement and management of the Company's exposure to market risks.

The functional currency of The Company is INR. The Company does not have foreign currency exposure. Hence, currency risk is not there.

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices and related market variables including 
interest rate for investments in debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities, caused by factors specific to an individual investments, its issuer and 
market. The Company's exposure to price risk arises from diversified investments in mutual funds and Bonds, and Securities held for trade, and classified 
in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss.
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40  Additional Information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Standalone Financial Statement.

as % of 
Standalo

ne net 
assets

Amount
as % of 

Standalone profit 
or loss

Amount

as % of 
Standalone 

comprehensive 
Income

Amount
as % Total 

Comprehensive 
Income

Amount

90.71% 22,26,559.24   111.47% 2,74,357.99        100.00% 2,643.28                 111.35% 2,77,001.27           

9.29% 2,27,968.78     -11.47% -28,226.47          0.00% -                           -11.35% -28,226.47             
Total 100.00% 24,54,528.02  100.00% 2,46,131.52        100.00% 2,643.28                 100.00% 2,48,774.80           

as % of 
Standalo

ne net 
assets

Amount
as % of 

Standalone profit 
or loss

Amount

as % of 
Standalone 

comprehensive 
Income

Amount

as % of 
Standalone Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

88.25% 19,52,201.25   82.39% 1,73,768.23        100.00% 7,834.61                 83.02% 1,81,602.84           

11.75% 2,59,852.25     17.61% 37,136.74           0.00% -                           16.98% 37,136.74               
Total 100.00% 22,12,053.50  100.00% 2,10,904.97        100.00% 7,834.61                 100.00% 2,18,739.58           

 For the year ended March 31, 2025

 Name of 
entity

 Name of entity

 For the year ended March 31, 2024

 Net Assets Share in profit or loss
 Share in other 

comprehensive income
Share in total 

comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

 Share in other 
comprehensive income

 Net Assets Share in profit or loss

Subsidiary 
Company

RSL

Parent 
Company

RCPL

Parent 
Company

RSL

Subsidiary 
Company

RCPL
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41 Operating Segment

42 Scheme of Amalgamation

Accounting Treatment:

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the financial information for the comparative period has been restated as if the amalgamation had occurred from the beginning
of the comparative period.

The Company identifies Operating Segments as components of an entity for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the
Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance.
The Company's activities revolve around providing financial services, primarily share and stock broking services , acting as a Depository Participant , and
distributing Mutual Funds and other capital market products.
All of The Company's activities are considered by the CODM as one single, aggregated business. Aggregation is done due to the similarities of the financial
products and services provided to the customer, the nature of the services, and the methods used to provide them.
Considering the nature of The Company's business and the basis of review by the CODM for decision-making and performance measurement, The Company has
only one reportable segment namely, Broking and Related services. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures required to be furnished for a single
reportable segment.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (the "Scheme") under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Ahmedabad Bench, vide its order dated September 11, 2023, sanctioned the amalgamation of Ratnakar Securities Private Limited (the "Transferor Company")
with Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited (the "Transferee Company").
The Scheme became effective upon filing the certified copy of the NCLT order with the Registrar of Companies. In accordance with the Scheme.
Appointed Date: The amalgamation is effective from the Appointed Date of September 27, 2022 (the date on which the Resolution Plan was approved by the
NCLT).
Change of Name: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Transferee Company (Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) was changed to "RATNAKAR 
SECURITIES LIMITED".
Nature of Amalgamation: The amalgamation is in the nature of a business combination under common control and has been accounted for using the "Pooling 
of Interest Method" as prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination).

All assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company were transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company at their existing carrying amounts as on the
Appointed Date.
The difference between the net assets and reserves of the Transferor Company has been adjusted in the Capital Reserve of the Transferee Company.
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44 Other Statutory Information

Consideration: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in the
following proportion:

(i) 5 (five) new equity shares of ₹10/- each in the Transferee Company for every 1 (one) equity share of ₹10/- each held in the Transferor Company.
(ii) 1 (one) 6% Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Preference Share (OFCRPS) of ₹10/- each in the Transferee Company for every 1 (one) equity share 
of ₹10/- each held in the Transferor Company.

Dissolution of Transferor Company: The Transferor Company, Ratnakar Securities Private Limited, stands dissolved without winding up from the Effective 

The following disclosures are made as required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013:
(a) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or is pending against The Company for holding any benami
property.
(b) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(c) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of The Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(d) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Company shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(e) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(f) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
(g) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.
(h) The Company has not taken any loan from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Consequently, the filing of quarterly
returns or statements of current assets with banks or financial institutions is not applicable to The Company.

The Company is not required to comply with the Corporate Social Responsibilities as required under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.
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As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & GoyalFor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountantsof Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
CA Vamesh Shah Managing Director Whole-time director
Partner DIN :  0023582  DIN : 01843141 
Mem. No.: 165075
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xiv) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure
of ratios, is not applicable to the Group for current and previous financial year as it is in broking business and not
an NBFC registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formally known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) 

 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
  
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the Consolidated financial statements of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
(Formally known as Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) (CIN:L66120GJ1992PLC017564) 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries (Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the 
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the Consolidated statement of 
profit and loss and statement (including other comprehensive income) the Consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year  ended on that date, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and 
disclosures (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements”). The 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Management of the 
Company and approved by the Board of Directors of the company in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read along with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended (‘the Rules’) along with disclosure requirements of Division III of 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to the limited extent and other generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit, and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
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Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other 
information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

 
Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information included in the Annual Report and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiary 
audited by the other auditor, to the extent it relates to these entity and, in doing so, 
place reliance on the work of the other auditor and consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other 
information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial 
statements audited by the other auditor. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
Consolidated state of affairs, Consolidated results of operations, Consolidated changes 
in equity and Consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 



MAHESHWARI & GOYAL 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible 
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing 
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements . 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
 
Other Matters 

 
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, of a 
subsidiary company whose financial statement is considered in the Consolidated 
Financial Statement. 
 
These financial statements of the subsidiary company have been audited by the other 
auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the Holding Company’s 
management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statement, in so far as it 
related to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our 
report in terms of sub section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of such other auditors. 
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters, 
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 
of the Order to be included in the Auditors Report, according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the 
auditors of respective subsidiaries, included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the 
management of the Holding Company, we report that there are no qualifications or 
adverse remarks in this CARO reports of the said company included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 

 
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration 

of reports of other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiary referred ti 
in the Other Matters paragraph above, we report that:  

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that  

 digital back up of the accounting data was regularly taken, however the 
same has not been preserved for our verification 

 the company has identified MSME dues based only on the confirmation in 
that respect provided by the respective vendors.  

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
including other comprehensive income, Consolidated Statement of changes in 
equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.  

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements materially 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014  

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 
31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as at 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure A”.  

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors during the year is 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) Based on our examination, the Group in process of implementing an 
accounting software having feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.  

 
(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in     
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:   
 
i. The Company has disclosed material pending litigations in its Consolidated 

Financial Statements  which may impact its financial position;  

ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts   
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  
 
 

 The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

 The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and  

 

 Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11€, as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 
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 The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year 
under audit.  

 
  For Maheshwari & Goyal 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 012946C 
 
 
 
 
Vamesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 165075 
Date: 14th November, 2025.  
Place: Ahmedabad 

UDIN: 25165075BMMKHC7623 

                       

  



MAHESHWARI & GOYAL 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 

                                                                                                                                            

 Annexure ‘A’  

To the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Referred to paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and                                 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of the 
Group for the year ended March 31, 2025) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

 
  We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Ratnakar Securities Limited (“herein after referred to as “Holding 
Company” or “the Group”) and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as of 
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the Company for the period ended on that date. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting and 

the Standards on auditing, both issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls with respect to Consolidated Financial Statements. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 

if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 

of the internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements , whether due 

to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting. 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting with 

reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the preparation of Consolidated 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that  

 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements  in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 

being made only in accordance with authorization of Management and Directors of the 

Company; and  

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 

material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in 

the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding company, its subsidiary company, 

which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements over financial reporting 

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

established by the respective companies considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness o the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it 

relates to subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, is based 

solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in 

India and our opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of the Group is not affected. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance 

on the work done by and the reports of such other auditors. 

  
  For Maheshwari & Goyal 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 012946C 
 
 
 
 
Vamesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 165075 
Date: 14th November, 2025.  
Place: Ahmedabad 

UDIN: 25165075BMMKHC7623 
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CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars 
 Note 
No. 

 As at March 31, 
2025 

 As at March 31, 
2024 

ASSETS
I. Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,53,847.96            6,02,682.66            
(b) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6 11,32,777.50          10,78,530.55          
(c) Investments 7 58,597.36               1,46,072.10            
(d) Loans 8 7,105.69                 32,992.86               
(e) Trade Receivable 9 17,62,673.67          14,24,803.36          
(f) Other Financial asset 10 35,57,290.43          26,51,611.66          
Total Financial Assets 67,72,292.61          59,36,693.19          

II.Non Financial Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 11 2,08,479.62            2,34,068.72            
(b) Goodwill on consolidation 9,716.63                 9,716.63                 
(c) Investment Property 12 98,960.00               -                           
(d) Other Non-financial asset 13 1,40,902.08            1,18,417.43            
Total Non Financial Assets 4,58,058.33            3,62,202.78            

Total Assets 72,30,350.94          62,98,895.97          
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
I. Financial Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables 14
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4,769.31                 4,493.70                 
  (ii) Total outstanding dues of others 37,63,916.36          29,05,511.10          

(b) Borrowings 15 7,75,300.92            9,80,012.77            
(c) Purchase Consideration payable 34 18,00,000.00          18,00,000.00          
(d) Other Financial Liability 16 1,08,540.00            1,12,210.00            
Total Financial Liabilities 64,52,526.59          58,02,227.57          

II. Non Financial Liabilities
 (a) Current tax liability (net) 25 1,03,150.00            79,600.00               
 (b) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 25 24,474.96               26,868.25               
 (c) Other Non Financial Liabilities 18 95,035.28               78,792.52               
 (d) Provision 19 67,270.23               62,017.81               
Total Non Financial Assets 2,89,930.47            2,47,278.58            

Equity
 (a) Equity Share capital 20       51,999.60               51,999.60               
 (b) Other Equity 21       4,35,894.29            1,97,390.22            
Total Equity 4,87,893.89            2,49,389.82            

Total Liabilities and Equity 72,30,350.94          62,98,895.97          
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (1 to 46)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Note 
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

I Revenue from operations
Commission and fees income 22 21,18,174.00             17,96,604.00             
Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net) 23 (17,343.15)                 11,116.90                  
Interest Income 24 1,26,742.00               1,11,008.00               

II Other income 25 10,912.39                  72,709.00                  
IV Total Income (I+II) 22,38,485.24            19,91,437.90            

V Expenses
Direct Expenses 26 12,15,458.00             10,49,571.00             
Employee benefits expense 27 2,25,299.45               1,99,289.39               
Finance costs 28 1,00,482.04               78,007.22                  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 45,628.87                  35,965.05                  
Other expenses 30 3,14,358.86               3,48,430.40               
Total expenses 19,01,227.22            17,11,263.06            

VI Profit before tax 3,37,258.02               2,80,174.84               
VII Tax expense

Current tax 31 1,03,150.00               79,600.00                  
Adjustments in respect of current tax of earlier years 3,657.00                    (5,793.00)                   
Deferred tax (1,654.41)                   (6,226.51)                   
Total tax expense 1,05,152.59               67,580.49                  

VIII Profit for the year 2,32,105.43               2,12,594.35               
Other comprehensive income

IX Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans 2,643.28                     7,834.61                     
Income tax effect on above (Deferred tax) 735.36                        2,179.59                     
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of 
tax 3,378.64                    10,014.20                  

X Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,35,484.07               2,22,608.55               

XI Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)
- Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 32 44.64                          40.88                          

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 46)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

Particulars



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Consolidated Cash Flow statement

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
  Year ended

March 31, 2025 
  Year ended

March 31, 2024 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Profit before tax 3,37,258.02                         2,80,174.84                         

Adjustment for :
Depreciation 45,628.87                            35,965.05                            
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and (10,912.39)                          -                                        
Dividend Income -                                        -                                        
Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net) 17,343.15                           (11,116.90)                          
Interest expense on borrowings 1,00,482.04                         78,007.22                            

Operating Profit  before changes in working capital 4,89,799.69                         3,82,753.21                         

Adjustment for (Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables (3,37,870.31)                       (3,73,382.04)                       
Loans and Advances (Long term and Short Term) 25,887.17                           (4,952.49)                            
Other Financial Assets (9,05,678.77)                       (16,26,914.80)                     
Other Non Financial Assets (22,484.65)                          (31,046.83)                          

Adjustment for Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables 6,53,693.40                         18,37,273.14                       
Provision -                                        -                                        
Other Financial Liability 6,53,269.76                        18,39,599.95                       
Other Non Financial Liability 42,651.89                            66,907.78                            

Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 1,09,468.48                        17,07,484.69                      

Less: Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refunded (82,449.52)                          (33,373.18)                          
Net Cash Flow generated from Operating Activities 5,16,818.66                        20,56,864.72                      

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Income -                                        -                                        
Investment in Property (98,960.00)                          -                                        
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,565.35)                          (36,266.28)                          
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets

7,206.45                              

(Proceeds)/ Investment (from)/ in Bank deposits 
(Net) (54,246.95)                          97,510.95                           
 Purchase of investments 67,160.84                           (13,306.25)                          

Net Cash Flow generated from Investing Activities (1,00,405.01)                      48,215.48                            



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Consolidated Cash Flow statement

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
  Year ended

March 31, 2025 
  Year ended

March 31, 2024 
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings -                                        -                                        
Interest expense on borrowings (1,00,482.04)                       (78,007.22)                          

Net Cash Flow generated from Financing Activities (1,00,482.04)                      (78,007.22)                          

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
3,15,931.62                        20,27,072.97                      

 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 6,02,682.66                         3,88,298.29                         

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of period 2,53,847.96                         6,02,682.66                         
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (1 to 46)

As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  0023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN: L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity 
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

1. Equity Share Capital
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
Authorised

10,00,000.00             10,00,000.00             

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
51,999.60                   51,999.60                   

Total 51,999.60                   51,999.60                   

2. Other Equity
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
(a) Share premium Account

Opening balance 3,61,968.51               3,61,968.51               
Closing balance 3,61,968.51               3,61,968.51               

(b) Generel Reserve
Opening balance 19,838.50                   19,750.00                   
Additions -                               88.50                           
Closing balance 19,838.50                   19,838.50                   

(c) Retained earnings
Opening balance 13,15,583.21             96,285.07                   
Add: Profit for the year 2,32,105.43                2,12,594.35                

3,378.64                     10,014.20                   
-                               9,48,000.40                

3,020.00                     48,689.19                   
Closing balance 15,54,087.28             13,15,583.21             

(d) Capital reserve due to Merger (refer note 34)
Opening balance (15,00,000.00)           (15,00,000.00)           
Closing balance (15,00,000.00)           (15,00,000.00)           

Total (a+b+c+d) 4,35,894.29               1,97,390.22               
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (1 to 46)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

CA Vamesh Shah Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
Partner Managing director Whole-time director
Mem. No.: 165075 DIN :  00023582  DIN : 01843141 
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad
UDIN: Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

 Add: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan approved by NCLT 
 Add : Elimination on account of merger due to Inter-company transaction 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 5,19,996 (Previous Year: 5,19,996) shares of INR 10 each 

 1,00,00,000(Previous Year: 1,00,00,000) shares of INR 10 each 

 Less: Re-measurement loss/(gain) on post employment benefit obligation 



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.       Company Information

2. Basis of preparation and Presentation:

2.1  Statement of Compliance: 

The consolidated financial statements of The Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards

('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the financial years presented in the consolidated financial

statements, except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to the existing

accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III of the Companies Act,

as amended from time to time, for NonBanking Financial Companies (‘NBFCs’) that are required to comply with Ind AS.

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash

Flows.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,

except for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit plan assets and liabilities, and share based payments,

which are measured at fair value.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts are rounded to the nearest

Hundreds with two decimals, except unless otherwise stated. Amount indicated as 0.00 are below rounding off

threshold.

(i) Ratnakar Securities Limited (formerly, Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited ) ('the Company') is a listed public limited

company incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its registered office is situated at Shop-

304, Sankalp Square-2, Nr. Delux Appartment, Nr. Kalgi char rasta, Jalaram Temple, Paldi, Ahmedabad-380006.

(ii) The Equity shares of the Company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The shares were

suspended from trading ; the approved Resolution Plan facilitates the restoration of trading permission. The Company

was originally engaged in the business of software development. Following the Resolution Plan, the Company's main

objects have been altered to include the business of acting as share and stock brokers, depository participants, and

providing other financial and investment services .

(iii) The Company (then Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) was a Corporate Debtor and was admitted into the Corporate

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) on 15.03.2021. This was in an application filed by an Operational Creditor under

Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016. The Resolution Plan noted "Lack of management control"

and "Non-Commitment of ex-management" as reasons for the company's state.

(iv) An application for initiation of CIRP was admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad

Bench (‘NCLT’) vide order dated 15.03.2021 (CP (IB) 197 of 2020). The Resolution Plan, submitted by M/s. Ratnakar

Securities Private Limited (the 'Successful Resolution Applicant' or 'SRA') , was approved by the Committee of Creditors

(CoC) with a 100% vote. The NCLT approved this Resolution Plan vide order dated 27.09.2022. The Scheme of

Amalgamation, which was an integral part of the Resolution Plan , was formally sanctioned by a subsequent NCLT order

dated 11.09.2023.

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

3.Summary of Material Accounting Policies:

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Class of assets Useful Life (in years)

Building 60 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 5 to 10 Years

Computer Equipment 3 to 6 Years

Vehicles 8 to 10 Years

3.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an assets less its estimated residual value. Based on management’s

evaluation, useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the act represent actual useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Accordingly, The Group has used useful lives as mentioned in Schedule II of the Act to provide depreciation of different

class of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The Group provides depreciation on reducing balance method as per the

useful life mentioned in Schedule II of the Act. Any change in estimate is accounted on prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows : 

Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis from the date of such additions. Depreciation on assets

sold, discarded, disabled or demolished during the period is being provided up to the date in which such assets are sold,

discarded, disabled or demolished. 

Items of property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes or levies (net of recoverable taxes) and any directly attributable

cost of bringing the assets to their working condition for intended use. 

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as

“Capital work-in-progress”. 

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at

the lower of their net carrying amount and net realisable value and are shown separately in the Consolidated Financial

Statements. Any write-down in this regard is recognised immediately in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

At the end of each reporting period, The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets, other than

deferred tax assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, The Group

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Each CGU represents

the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets

or CGUs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to

individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted. 



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

3.3 Financial Instruments

(1) Initial Recognition and Measurements

(2) Classification and Subsequent Measurements

(a) Financial Assets

(i) At amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):-

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity. The financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when The Group becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial

instruments at initial recognition.

A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at

fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial

assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the Consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price,

the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an

active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable

markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the

fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Consolidated statement

of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants take

into account when pricing the financial assets or financial liability.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of business model in

which they are held. This assessment is done for portfolio of the financial assets. The relevant categories are as below:

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU ) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of

the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the

carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in earlier years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment

losses recognised for the asset/cash generating unit no longer exist or have decreased. However, the increase in

carrying amount of an asset due to reversal of an impairment loss is recognised to the extent it does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for

that asset/cash generating unit in earlier years. Reversal of impairment loss is directly recognised in the Consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss.

 - the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 



CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

(ii) At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(iii) At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

(iv) Investment in Equity Instruments

(v) Impairment of Financial assets

Where The Group classifies equity instruments as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding

dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts of profit or loss from OCI to Consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. 

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised

cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss,

otherwise lifetime ECL is used. 

However, only in case of trade receivables, The Group applies the simplified approach which requires expected lifetime

losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

Expected credit losses rate the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to The Group in accordance with

the contract and all the cash flows that The Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original

effective interest rate. The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument

through the expected life of that financial instrument. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the

assets.

Financial assets which are not measured at amortised cost or OCI and are held for trading are measured at FVTPL. Fair

value changes related to such financial assets are recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on The Group’s business model, The Group has classified its securities held for trade,Investment in Equity Shares

and Investment in Mutual Funds at FVTPL.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures are out of scope of Ind AS 109 and hence, The Group has

accounted for its investment in Subsidiaries at cost.

All other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for

trading are classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments other than held for trading, The Group has irrevocable option

to present in Other Comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an

instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

(vi) Derecognition of Financial Assets

(b) Financial Liabilities

(i) At amortised cost:

(ii) At Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

(iii) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

(iv) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, The Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or

have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an

extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial

modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and

Loss.

Trade and other payables are recognised at the transaction cost, which is its fair value, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost.

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise;

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• the financial liability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with The Group’s

documented risk management.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and

rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which The Group neither transfers nor retains

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of

the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss if such

gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that

financial asset.

Fair value changes related to such financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

All financial liabilities of The Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or

at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at

the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured

at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Under the effective interest method, the

future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The

cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount

and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial

liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The

corresponding effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest expense over the

relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the Consolidated statement of Profit

and Loss. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

(3) Equity instruments

3.4 Revenue Recognition

Commission and Fees Income relating to Distribution of Financial Products: Fees on distribution services are

recognized at a point in time when the service obligations are completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfilled. 

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a

customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which The Group

expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than

one performance obligation, The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount

that depicts the amount of consideration to which The Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each

performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) The Group satisfies a performance obligation Revenue from contracts with

customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer which can be either at a point in

time or over time, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which The Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those services. 

(b) Revenue recognized are exclusive of goods and service tax, stamp duties and other levies by Security Exchange

Board of India (SEBI) and exchanges. 

(c) The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources: 

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value

of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single

comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. 

(a) The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that

creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when The Group has a legally enforceable right (not contingent on

future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by The Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Debt and equity instruments issued by The Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance

with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

as per the relevant standards. Ordinary shares are classified as Equity when The Group has an un-conditional right to

avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and

absolute discretion of The Group and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever to that effect.

(i)      Commission and Fees Income from distribution of financial products 

(ii)    Brokerage Income from stock broking business
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

3.5 Retirement and other Employees Benefit

(i) Short term Employee Benefits 

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan 

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan 

(d) In respect of other heads of income, it is accounted for to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. An entity shall

recognise a refund liability if the entity receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or all of

that consideration to the customer.

Dividend Income : Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment of the dividend is established, it is

probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to The Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

Employee benefits include short term employee benefits, provident fund, employee’s state insurance, and gratuity 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term

employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Group

recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services

rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid. 

The Group’s contribution to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution

plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are

rendered by the employees. The Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a

monthly basis. 

The Group provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “”Gratuity Plan””) covering eligible employees in

accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested

employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective

employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Group’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected

Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. The Group's liability is un-funded. Re-measurements of the net defined

benefit liability comprising actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined

benefit liability) and, are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such re-measurements are not reclassified to the

Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent year.

Commission and Fees Income relating to Stock Broking : Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in

time when performance obligation is satisfied. Income from broking activities is accounted for on the trade date of

transactions.

(e) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value, with net changes in

fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
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3.6 Current and deferred tax

(i) Current tax :

(ii) Deferred tax :

3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset:

3.8 Leases

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Deferred tax is recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of

assets and liabilities in Consolidated Financial Statements and their respective tax bases at the reporting date, using the

tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantially enacted as on reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax

reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which The Group expects, at the reporting date, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried

forward tax losses and tax credits subject to the assessment of reasonable certainty of recovery. Deferred tax assets

and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities

representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income

levied by the same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside with the underlying items i.e. either in the statement of other

comprehensive income or directly in equity as relevant.

Provisions are recognised when The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best

estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into

account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected

future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the

balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability. When The Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss net of any

reimbursement. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not

provided for. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are not

recognised but are disclosed in the notes where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a

lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies

the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term

leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the reporting period in

accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in

respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid

or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax

laws) enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only

if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle

the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

Tax on Income comprises current and deferred tax.
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3.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

3.10 Earning per share

3.11 Segment Reporting

3.12 Cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash

equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand

deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the period attributable to equity share holder by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the period attributable to Equity Share holders

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for effects of all dilutive

portential equity shares.

The Group's operating segments are reflected based on principal business activities, the nature of service, the differing

risks and returns, the organization structure, and the internal financial reporting system. The CODM reviews the

operations of The Group at the group level, therefore the Group has primarily a single operating and reportable

segment namely,Broking,andrelated services. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures required to be furnished

for a single reportable segment.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash

flows from regular operating, investing and financing activities of The Group are segregated based upon the available

information.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase

of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the

cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables,

respectively, in the balance sheet

3.13 Goods And Services Tax Paid On Acquisition Of Assets Or On Incurring Expenses
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,

judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to

period. Appropriate changes in estimates are recognised in the periods in which the Group becomes aware of the

changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized

prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods. Following are estimates and judgements

that have significant impact on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet:

3.14  Standards Issued And Effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2023 dated 31 March, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April, 2023. However, these

amendments does not have an impact on Financial Statements and material accounting policy information.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material

accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment

is annual periods beginning on or after1 April, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the

amendment is insignificant in the Group’s financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a

definition of accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in

accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual

periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its

financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does

not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of

this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and

there is no impact on its financial statement.

3.14  Standards notified but Not Effective

 There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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4.1  Business Model Assessment: 

4.2  Fair Value Of Financial Instrument: 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (Solely Payments of Principal and

Interest) and the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of

financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement

reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance

measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed.

The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income

that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are

consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale

decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised

gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period

in which they arise.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) that the

Group can access at measurement date.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market

conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another

valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet

cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the

use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this

is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of

liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,

correlation and volatility.

Some of the group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value is the

price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another 

valuation technique.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to

the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at

measurement date
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4.2  Fair Value Of Financial Instrument: 

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market

conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another

valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet

cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the

use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this

is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of

liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,

correlation and volatility.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(a) Balances with banks 

- in Current accounts 2,53,847.25                 6,02,681.95                

(b) Cash on hand 0.71                              0.71                              

Total (a+b) 2,53,847.96                 6,02,682.66                

6 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

6,67,000.00                 8,43,000.00                

Bank Deposits with remaining maturities more than 12 months* 4,48,000.00                 2,22,000.00                

Interest accrued but not due on Bank Deposits 17,777.50                    13,530.55                    

Total 11,32,777.50               10,78,530.55              

* Break up of Fixed Deposits with banks

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

2,00,000.00                 1,50,000.00                

1,00,000.00                 1,00,000.00                

2,75,000.00                 2,75,000.00                

7 Investments

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

Quoted - measured at Fair value through profit and loss

Investment in Equity shares 58,583.50                    1,46,058.80                

Investment in Mutual Fund -                                -                                

Other Investment 13.86                            13.30                            

Total 58,597.36                    1,46,072.10                

8 Loans

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(measured at amortised cost) 

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Loans and Advances to Employees 7,105.69                       32,992.86                    

Total 7,105.69                      32,992.86                    

Bank Deposits with remaining maturities more than 3 months  

but less than 12 months*

 Fixed Deposits pledged against Bank Guarantee 

 Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for securing overdraft 

facilities 

 Fixed Deposits under lien with Stock Exchange to meet margin 

requirement 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

9 Trade Receivables

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 Unsecured :

 Receivable from Clients/Customers

Considered good 17,62,673.67               14,24,803.36              

Significant increase in credit risk -                                -                                

Less : Allowance for expected credit Loss -                                -                                

Total 17,62,673.67               14,24,803.36              

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

 Considered 

good 

 Considered 

good 

  Considered doubtful 

Less than 6 months 17,61,115.06                    -                                -                                

6 months-1 year 79.18                                 -                                -                                

1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                

2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                

More than 3 years 1,479.43                            -                                -                                

 Total 17,62,673.67                    -                                -                                

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

 Considered 

good 

 Considered 

good 

  Considered doubtful 

Less than 6 months 14,23,323.92                    -                                -                                

6 months-1 year -                                     -                                -                                

1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                

2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                

More than 3 years 1,479.43                            -                                -                                

 Total 14,24,803.36                    -                                -                                

10 Other Financial assets

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(measured at amortised cost) 

Deposits with Exchange 1,11,250.00                 1,11,250.00                

Margins with Exchanges and clearing member 34,30,919.77               25,30,041.96              

Less : Impairment Allowances -                                -                                

35,42,169.77               26,41,291.96              

Deposit with Vendors 1,944.76                       1,364.66                      

Less : Impairment Allowances -                                -                                

1,944.76                      1,364.66                      

Interest accrued but not due on Other deposits 13,175.90                    8,955.04                      

Total 35,57,290.43               26,51,611.66              

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

Undisputed TR Disputed TR

Disputed TR

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

Undisputed TR
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Particulars / Assets  Buildings 
 Furniture and 

Fittings 
 Motor Vehicles 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Computers 
 Electricals 

and 
Installments 

 Total 

Gross Block (At Cost)
At 31 March 2023 2,07,996.73         5,585.59         82,818.60           5,136.99         10,599.62         271.67         3,12,409.20         
Additions -                         -                   33,102.06           2,557.22         607.00               -               36,266.28             
Disposals -                         -                   -                       -                   -                      -               -                         
At 31 March 2024 2,07,996.73         5,585.59         1,15,920.66        7,694.21         11,206.62         271.67         3,48,675.48         
Additions -                         -                   -                       405.00            21,160.35         -               21,565.35             
Disposals -                         -                   4,691.71             -                   -                      -               4,691.71               
At 31 March 2025 2,07,996.73         5,585.59         1,11,228.95        8,099.21         32,366.97         271.67         3,65,549.12         

-                         
Depreciation Fund -                         
At 31 March 2023 27,929.17             2,517.54         38,786.89           1,538.19         7,747.44            122.45         78,641.68             
Charge for the year 17,112.51             794.21            13,809.53           2,281.33         1,928.83            38.63           35,965.04             
Disposals -                         -                   -                       -                   -                      -               -                         
At 31 March 2024 45,041.68             3,311.75         52,596.43           3,819.52         9,676.27            161.08         1,14,606.73         
Charge for the year 15,486.25             588.62            19,778.94           1,906.43         7,840.00            28.63           45,628.87             
Disposals -                         -                   3,166.09             -                   -                      -               3,166.09               
At 31 March 2025 60,527.93             3,900.37         69,209.27           5,725.95         17,516.27         189.71         1,57,069.50         

-                         
Net Block -                         
At 31 March 2024 1,62,955.05         2,273.84         63,324.23           3,874.69         1,530.35            110.59         2,34,068.75         
At 31 March 2025 1,47,468.80         1,685.22         42,019.68           2,373.26         14,850.70         81.96           2,08,479.62         
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12 Investment Property:

Particulars
 as at 31st 

March, 2024 
 Additions 

 as at 31st 
March, 2025 

Land -                      98,960.00              98,960.00          
Total -                      98,960.00              98,960.00         

Fair value
Estimation of fair value of Investment properties

 as at 31st 
March, 2025 

1,45,000.00      

Particulars

Land 
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13 Other Non-Financial asset

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

Prepaid expenses 9,402.31                       10,583.52                    

GST Credit Receivable 243.58                          1,026.25                      

Advance tax and TDS receivable 1,03,429.58                 75,531.17                    

Advances to suppliers 4,786.02                       4,661.05                      

Other Receivable 23,040.59                    26,615.45                    

Total 1,40,902.08                 1,18,417.43                

14 Trade Payable

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Payable to Vendors (MSE) 4,769.31                       4,493.70                      

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Payable to Vendors 1,45,066.86                 1,52,058.36                

-Payable to Clients 36,13,534.44               27,49,292.55              

-Payable to Exchanges 5,315.05                       4,160.19                      

Total 37,68,685.66               29,10,004.81              

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars  MSE undisputed  Others undisputed  Total 

(i) Unbilled Dues -                                     -                                -                                

(ii) Others

Less than 1 year 4,769.31                            37,63,916.36               37,68,685.66              

1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                

2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                

More than 3 years -                                     -                                -                                

Total (i + ii) 4,769.31                           37,63,916.36               37,68,685.66              

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars  MSE undisputed  Others undisputed  Total 

(i) Unbilled Dues -                                     -                                -                                

(ii) Others

Less than 1 year 4,493.70                            29,05,511.10               41,32,328.49              

1-2 years -                                     -                                -                                

2-3 years -                                     -                                -                                

More than 3 years -                                     -                                -                                

Total (i + ii) 4,493.70                           29,05,511.10               41,32,328.49              

 Particulars 

 Particulars 



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

4,769.31                       4,493.70                      

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

-                                -                                

15 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(measured at amortised cost) 

 Secured Borrowings 

Vehicle loans from banks (note a) 39,593.88                    50,191.00                    

7,35,707.04                 7,29,821.77                

Unsecured Borrowings repayable on demand

 Loan from Director -                                50,000.00                    

 Inter-Corporate Borrowing -                                1,50,000.00                

Total 7,75,300.92                 9,80,012.77                

(a) Security and terms of repayment of borrowings from banks:

(b) Security against borrowings repayable on demand from Financial Institution:

 As at March 31, 

2024 

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

       Principal

       Interest

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 

16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of 

delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 

specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006;

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable 

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest 

dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 

section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006.

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 

end of each accounting year

As at March 31, 2025 

 Loans from Financial Institution repayable on demand (note b) 

Particulars

 Particulars 

 The aforesaid term loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicles, repayable in 84 monthly 

instalments  

 Secured against hypothecation of mortgage of property / mortgage of Securities/ lien on fixed deposits. 
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16 Other Financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 Security deposits received 1,08,540.00              1,11,040.00               

Employee Liabilities -                               1,170.00                    

Total 1,08,540.00              1,12,210.00               

17      Deferred Tax Assets /Liabilities (Net) Deferred Tax Assets /Liabilities (Net)

(a) Deferred Tax Relates To The Following:

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

17,980.65                    15,075.20                    

-3,989.78                     -3,254.42                     

10,484.09                    15,047.47                    

24,474.96                    26,868.25                    

(b) The Movement In Deferred Tax Assets And Liabilities During The Year:

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

26,868.25                    35,274.61                    

-1,654.41                     -6,226.51                     

-735.36                         -2,179.59                     

24,478.49                    26,868.52                    

(c) Income Tax Expense

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

1,03,150.00                 79,600.00                    

-1,654.41                     -6,226.51                     

3,657.00                       -5,793.00                     

1,05,152.59                 67,580.49                    

(d) Income Tax Recognised In Other Comprehensive Income)

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

735.36                          2,179.59                      

735.36                          2,179.59                      

18 Other non-financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

34,761.74                    26,162.68                    

 Other Payables 60,273.54                    52,629.84                    

 Security deposit -                                -                                

Total 95,035.28                    78,792.52                    

 Advance received from customers 

 Particulars 

Total 

Total

 Particulars 

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans

 Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities

Gratuity 

Depreciation

 Particulars 

Deferred tax asset related to items recognised in other 

comprehensive income during the year:

Income tax relating to re-measurement gains on defined 

Total

Deferred tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in 

Deferred tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in 

Closing balance - Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

 Particulars 

Opening balance - Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

 Particulars 

Current tax taxes

Deferred tax charge/(income)

Taxes on earlier years
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19 Provision

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 Provision for Gratuity 67,270.23                    62,017.81                    

Total 67,270.23                    62,017.81                    

20 Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

Authorised

1,00,00,000(Previous Year: 1,00,00,000) shares of INR 10 each 10,00,000.00               10,00,000.00              

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

51,999.60                    51,999.60                    

Total 51,999.60                    51,999.60                    

(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares

 No. of Shares  Amount 

 As at 31st March 2023 1,00,00,000                 1,00,00,000.00           

 Add: Issued during the year -                                -                                

-94,80,004                   -99,48,000.40             

 As at 31st March 2024 5,19,996                      51,999.60                    

 Add: Issued during the year -                                -                                

 As at 31st March 2025 5,19,996                      51,999.60                    

(ii)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares

(iii)

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 No. of shares 74,556.00                    74,556.00                    

% of shareholding 14.34% 14.34%

 No. of shares 55,317.00                    55,317.00                    

% of shareholding 10.64% 10.64%

 No. of shares 25,000.00                    25,000.00                    

% of shareholding 4.81% 4.81%

 Less: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan 

approved by NCLT 

 Particulars 

 5,19,996 (Previous Year: 5,19,996) shares of INR 10 each 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate 

 MANSUKHBHAI J. SHAH  

 DILIP M. SHAH  

The Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each shareholder of

equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The

dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing

Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of The Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled

to receive the remaining assets of The Group. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

 DILIP MANSUKHBHAI SHAH – 

HUF  
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As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 No. of shares 16,562.00                    16,562.00                    

% of shareholding 3.19% 3.19%

 No. of shares 12,500.00                    12,500.00                    

% of shareholding 2.40% 2.40%

 No. of shares 1.00                              1.00                              

% of shareholding 0.00% 0.00%

 No. of shares 41,309.00                    41,309.00                    

% of shareholding 7.94% 7.94%

 No. of shares 28,267.00                    28,267.00                    

% of shareholding 5.44% 5.44%

(iv)

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

 No. of shares 74,556.00                    74,556.00                    

% of shareholding 14.34% 14.34%

 No. of shares 55,317.00                    55,317.00                    

% of shareholding 10.64% 10.64%

 No. of shares 41,309.00                    41,309.00                    

% of shareholding 7.94% 7.94%

 No. of shares 28,267.00                    28,267.00                    

% of shareholding 5.44% 5.44%

(v)

(vi)

21 Other Equity

As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(a) Share premium Account

Opening balance 3,61,968.51                 3,61,968.51                

Additions -                                -                                

Closing balance 3,61,968.51                 3,61,968.51                

 MANSUKHBHAI J. SHAH  

 MANJULABEN MANSUKHLAL 

SHAH  

 MANJULABEN MANSUKHLAL 

SHAH  

 ALPA DILIP SHAH  

 Ashit M shah 

 Shah A M 

 The Group has not bought back any shares and issued any bonus shares for consideration other than cash 

during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date. 

The promoters presented in the Note above pertain to the past promoters of Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited 

(MSTL).Pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law 

Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench, by its order dated 11th September, 2023 , Ratnakar Securities Private 

Limited ("RSPL" or "Transferor Company") has amalgamated with Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited ("Transferee 

Company").

As the effect of the approved Resolution Plan and the Scheme of Amalgamation are yet to be given effect as 

on the year end, the classification of promoters continues as per the pre-acquisition structure. Upon giving 

effect to the Resolution Plan and Scheme of Amalgamation and carrying out relevant formalities, the existing 

promoters of MSTL will be reclassified under the “Public” category, and the promoters of RSPL, to whom 

shares are to be issued under the Resolution Plan, will be classified as the “Promoters” of The Group.

 Particulars 

Details of share held by promotors in The Group

 MANSUKHBHAI JASKARAN 

SHAH-HUF 

 Particulars 

 Particulars 

 MANSUKHBHAI JASKARAN 

SHAH-HUF 

 DILIP M. SHAH  
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As at March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 

(b) Generel Reserve

Opening balance 19,838.50                    19,750.00                    

Additions -                                88.50                            

Closing balance 19,838.50                    19,838.50                    

(c) Retained earnings

Opening balance 13,15,583.21               96,285.07                    

Add: Profit for the year 2,32,105.43                 2,12,594.35                

3,378.64                       10,014.20                    

-                                9,48,000.40                

3,020.00                       48,689.19                    

Closing balance 15,54,087.28               13,15,583.21              

(d) Capital reserve due to Merger (refer note 34)

Opening balance -15,00,000.00             -15,00,000.00             

Additions -                                -                                

Closing balance -15,00,000.00             -15,00,000.00             

Total (a+b+c+d) 4,35,894.29                 1,97,390.22                

 Particulars 

 Add: Cancellation of the Shares as per Resolution plan 

approved by NCLT 

 Less: Re-measurement loss/(gain) on post employment 

benefit obligation (net of tax) 

company transaction betwenn Transferor and Transferee 

Company 
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22 Commission and fees income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

17,01,017.00         14,77,224.00        
60,019.00              33,892.00             
83,554.00              79,742.00             

Other Operating Income:
2,73,584.00           2,05,746.00          

         21,18,174.00         17,96,604.00 

23 Gain on Fair Value Changes (Net)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

(20,313.90)             8,279.91                
2,970.75                 2,836.99                

             (17,343.15)               11,116.90 

24 Interest Income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

73,371.00              63,857.00             
53,371.00              47,151.00             

            1,26,742.00            1,11,008.00 

25 Other Income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
5,819.00                 277.00                   

Net gain on Sale of Securities (838.00)                   70,719.00             
Dividend Income 247.00                    1,713.00                
Profit on Sale of Assets 5,684.39                 

-                          -                         
10,912.39              72,709.00             

Particulars

Particulars

Income from Depository services

Commission and Fees Income from :
Stock broking and allied services
Distribution of mutual fund products

Total
Late payment charges

Miscellaneous income

On financial instruments measured at fair value through 
profit or loss

Deposits with Banks
Clearing member

Total

 Investments
Other financial assets and liabilities

Total

Total

Particulars

Interest income on financial assets - measured at amortised 
cost

Particulars

Mutual Fund Income
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26 Direct Expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Sub brokerage          10,78,287.00            9,17,423.00 
Securities Transaction Tax paid                               -                       779.00 
Demat charges             1,37,171.00            1,31,369.00 

12,15,458.00         10,49,571.00        

27 Employee Benefits Expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
2,14,776.01           1,88,859.11          

Contribution to Provident Fund 2,627.74                 2,507.88                
Gratuity Expense (refer not 35) 7,896 7,922

2,25,299.45           1,99,289.39          

28 Finance Costs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

1,00,482.04        78,007.22          
1,00,482.04           78,007.22             

29 Depreciation expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

45,628.87              35,965.05             
45,628.87              35,965.05             

30 Other expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Rent                18,148.00               18,061.00 
Stamp duty                               -                         57.00 
Software annual expense                82,356.00               73,138.00 
Printing and stationary                13,068.00               13,691.00 
Payment to auditor                  1,700.00                 2,925.00 
Professional Fees                        80.00                       80.00 
Other Expenses             1,77,603.00            2,15,995.00 
bank charges                  8,632.00                 6,431.00 

Salaries and wages

Total

Interest Expense on financial liabilities (measured at 
amortised cost)

Interest on Borrowings
Total

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 
11)
Total

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Total
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For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Electric expenses                  7,624.00                 7,420.00 
Advertisement Exp                        50.00                              -   
Office exp                               -                         75.00 
Listing Fees on BSE                  3,250.00                 3,250.00 
Depository Fees                      347.29                 5,764.20 
Share Transfer Agent Fees                      333.20                     261.60 
Legal & Professional Exp.                      455.00                     410.00 
Prepaid expense                               -                         75.00 
GST Expense                      712.37                     796.60 
Total 3,14,358.86            3,48,430.40           

Payment to auditors (Net of GST credit)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
1,700.00                 2,925.00                

31 Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of 
Profit and loss:

Current Tax
 In respect of current year 1,02,500.00           70,000.00             
 In respect of earlier year

Deferred Tax
 In respect of current year (1,654.41)               (6,226.51)              

32 Earnings Per Share

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
2,32,105.43           2,12,594.35          

                 5,19,996                 5,19,996 
                       10.00                       10.00 

44.64                      40.88                     

33 Contingnet Liabilities and Capital Commitments
 As at March 31, 

2025 
 As at March 31, 

2024 
46,398.44              46,398.44             

Nil Nil

For Statutory Audit

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

(a) Contingent liabilities
(b) Capital Commitments

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. In 
Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding
Nominal value per share (In Rs.)
Earnings per share

- Basic and Diluted (In Rs.)

Particulars
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35 Detail of Employees Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Los

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
 Contribution to provident and other funds                  2,627.74                  2,507.88 

Defined Benefits Plans 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Balance at the beginning of the year                62,017.81 61,930.02               
Current service cost                  4,344.12 3,525.37                 
Interest cost                  4,186.20 4,397.03                 
Remeasurement (gain)/loss:

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments -3,447.38               -8,372.00               
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes financial in assumptions 804.10                    537.39                    

Benefits paid -634.62                   -                          
Past service cost -                          -                          
Balance at the Closing of the year 67,270.23               62,017.81               

The Group provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. The Group's gratuity scheme (unfunded) provides for a lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment, or on termination of employment. The amount is equivalent to 15 days salary (Basic + DA) payable for
each completed year of service, as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 , subject to a ceiling of ₹ 2,000,000. Vesting occurs upon completion
of 5 years of service.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation was measured using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Particulars

 (i) Present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars

The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Financial Statement:
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For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Current Liability 7,695.88                 46,691.82               
Non Current Liability 59,574.35               15,325.99               
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 67,270.23               62,017.81               

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Current service cost
Interest cost 4,344.12                 3,525.37                 
Past service cost -                          -                          
(Expected contributions by the employees) 3,998.42                 4,397.03                 
(Gains)/losses on curtailments and settlements -                          -                          
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8,342.54                 7,922.40                 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in Liability 2,643.28                 7,834.61                 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income -                          -                          
Change in asset ceiling -                          -                          
Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income -                          -                          
Total cost of the defined benefit plan for the year 2,643.28                 7,834.61                 

Particulars

 (ii) Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

 (iii) Cost of the defined benefit plan for the year

Particulars

(iv) Recognised in other Comprehensive Income

Particulars
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(v) Experience Adjustment
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year 67,270.23               62,017.81               
Plan assets at the end of year -                          -                          
Net Obligation at the end of year -67,270.23             -62,017.81             
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities gain/(loss) -3,447.38               -8,372.00               
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to changes in assumptions 804.10                    537.39                    

 (vi) Principal actuarial assumptions:

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.75% 7.10%
Expected rate of salary increase (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality
Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult. 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Ult. 

Rate of employees turnover (p.a.) 5% to 1% 5% to 1%
Retirement age 60 60

Particulars

Particulars

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, the salary growth rate and the average life
expectancy. The assumptions used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Estimates of future salary increase takes into account: inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market The plan exposes the Group to significant actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk: 
Inflation risk - A significant proportion of the defined benefit liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the inflation rate will increase the Group's liability. 
Interest rate risk-The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate prevailing market yields of Indian government securities.
A decrease in discount rate will increase the Group's defined benefit liability.
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For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Discount Rate - 1 percent increase 65,09,200 60,32,311
Discount Rate - 1 percent decrease 69,85,375 64,01,517
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent increase 69,82,118 63,99,709
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent decrease 65,07,783 60,30,690

(ix) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments
The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
7,69,588 46,69,182

65,533 53,513
63,272 51,667
61,090 49,884
58,982 48,163

18,08,473 97,654
36 Related Party Disclosures
(a) Names Of Related Parties And Nature Of Relationship

Director/Key Management Personnel

Enterprises in which director and its Relatives are interested

Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah

Particulars

Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in Defined Benefit Obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market
conditions at the accounting date. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been calculated using
the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the balance sheet. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change
in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

(viii) The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025 is 16 years. (as at March 31, 2024 is 16 years)

Expected Payments (Undiscounted)

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Relationship

Mr. Ajay Shah

Year 6 to Year 10

Name of Related Party

Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited
Kushal Ajay Shah

Ajay J Shah HUF

Nirmi Kushal Shah

 (vii) Sensitivity analysis in respect of the actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit obligation is given below:
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(b) Details Of Transactions With Related Party In The Ordinary Course Of Business For The Year Ended
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Salary expense

Mr. Ajay Shah 30,000.00               30,000.00               
Mr. Kushal Shah 18,000.00               4,500.00                 
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 30,000.00               30,000.00               

Loan Taken
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 7,42,000.00           1,50,000.00           

Loan Repaid
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 8,92,000.00           

Interest Paid
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited 18,015.99               7,631.68                 
Mr. Ajay Shah 19,290.00               17,050.00               

Remissiory 
Nirmi Kushal Shah 62,630.00               51,280.00               

Professional Fees
Mr. Kushal Shah -                          11,250.00               

Rent expense
Ajay J Shah 10,800.00               10,800.00               
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 4,800.00                 4,800.00                 
Ajay J Shah HUF 1,440.00                 1,440.00                 

Particulars
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(c) Amount Due To/From Related Party
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Other payables

Mr. Ajay Shah 30,344.70               820.44                    
Mr. Kushal Shah 15,473.96               -                          
Mrs. Mayuri Ajay Shah 24,410.78               -                          
Nirmi Kushal Shah 4,703.31                 6,708.26                 
Ajay J Shah HUF -                          120.00                    

Borrowing
Ratnakar Finwealth Private Limited -                          1,50,000.00           

37 Disclosures of Interest in Subsidiaries as per Ind AS 27
For the year 

ended March 31, 
2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024
Investment in Subsidiaries

Ratnakar Commodities Private Limited 100% 100%

38 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

ASSETS  
I. Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2,53,847.96           -                       2,53,847.96           6,02,682.66           -                          6,02,682.66           
(b) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents6,84,777.50           4,48,000.00        11,32,777.50         8,56,530.55           2,22,000.00           10,78,530.55         
(c) Investments 58,597.36               -                       58,597.36               1,46,072.10           -                          1,46,072.10           
(d) Loans 557.04                    6,548.66              7,105.69                 26,967.96               6,024.90                 32,992.86               
(e) Trade Receivable 17,61,194.24         1,479.43              17,62,673.67         14,23,323.92         1,479.43                 14,24,803.36         
(f) Other Financial asset 31,01,262.34         4,56,028.09        35,57,290.43         24,22,107.33         2,29,504.33           26,51,611.66         

Total Financial Assets 58,60,236.42         9,12,056.18        67,72,292.60         54,77,684.52         4,59,008.66           59,36,693.18         

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2,08,479.62        2,08,479.62           -                          2,34,068.72           2,34,068.72           
(b) Goodwill on consolidation 9,716.63              9,716.63                 9,716.63                 
(c) Investment Property -                          98,960.00           98,960.00               -                          -                          -                          
(d) Other Non-financial asset 1,40,902.08        1,40,902.08           1,18,417.43           -                          1,18,417.43           

Total Non Financial Assets -                          4,58,058.33        4,58,058.33           1,18,417.43           2,34,068.72           3,62,202.78           
Total Assets 58,60,236.42         13,70,114.51      72,30,350.93         55,96,101.95         6,93,077.39           62,98,895.96         

38 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Within 12 Months After 12 month Total Within 12 Months After 12 month Total

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

I. Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables

 (i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises4,769.31                 -                       4,769.31                 4,493.70                 -                          4,493.70                 
 (ii) Total outstanding dues of others 37,63,916.36         -                       37,63,916.36         29,05,511.10         -                          29,05,511.10         
(b) Borrowings 7,08,569.45           66,731.47           7,75,300.92           9,80,012.77           -                          9,80,012.77           
(c) Purchase Consideration payable 18,00,000.00         -                       18,00,000.00         -                          18,00,000.00         18,00,000.00         
(d) Other Financial Liability 1,08,540.00           1,08,540.00           1,12,210.00           -                          1,12,210.00           
Total Financial Liabilities 63,85,795.11         66,731.47           64,52,526.58         40,02,227.58         18,00,000.00         58,02,227.58         

II. Non Financial Liabilities
 (a) Current tax liability (net) 1,03,150.00           -                       1,03,150.00           79,600.00               -                          79,600.00               
 (b) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 24,474.96               -                       24,474.96               26,868.25               -                          26,868.25               
 (c) Other Non Financial Liabilities 95,035.28               -                       95,035.28               78,792.52               78,792.52               
 (d) Provision 7,695.88                 59,574.35           67,270.23               46,691.82               15,325.99               62,017.81               
Total Non Financial Assets 2,30,356.12           59,574.35           2,89,930.47           2,31,952.59           15,325.99               2,47,278.58           
Total Liabilities  (I+II) 66,16,151.23         1,26,305.82        67,42,457.05         42,34,180.17         18,15,325.99         60,49,506.16         

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
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39 Financial Instruments
(i) Capital Management

As at March 31, 
2025

As at March 31, 
2024

Borrowings including debt securities 7,75,300.92           9,80,012.77           
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 5) -2,53,847.96          -6,02,682.66          
Net Debt (i) 5,21,452.96           3,77,330.11           
Total equity (ii) 4,87,893.89           2,49,389.82           
 Total capital + net debt (iii=i+ii) 10,09,346.85         6,26,719.93           
 Gearing ratio (i)/(iii) 51.66% 60.21%

The Group's objective for capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor
and customer confidence, to ensure future development of its business and remain going concern. The Group is focused on keeping strong capital base to
ensure independence and sustained growth in business. The Group determines the capital management requirement based on annual operating plans and
long term and other strategic investment plans. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as
presented in the balance sheet. The funding requirements are predominately met through equity and revenue generated from operations. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. 

Particulars



Ratnakar Securities Limited (Previosuly known as "Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited")
CIN :L66120GJ1992PLC017564
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amount in INR Hundreds unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Category-wise financial instruments:

Amortised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total value Total fair value
Financial Aseet as at March 31, 2025

Cash and Cash equivalents 2,53,847.96        -                          -                          2,53,847.96           2,53,847.96           
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11,32,777.50      -                          -                          11,32,777.50         11,32,777.50         
Trade receivables 17,62,673.67      -                          -                          17,62,673.67         17,62,673.67         
Loans 7,105.69              -                          -                          7,105.69                 7,105.69                 
Investments -384.93                -                          58,982.28               58,597.36               11,32,777.50         
Other financial assets 35,57,290.43      -                          -                          35,57,290.43         35,57,290.43         

Total 67,13,310.32      -                          58,982.28               67,72,292.60         78,46,472.74         
Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2025

Trade payables 37,68,685.66      -                          -                          37,68,685.66         37,68,685.66         
Other financial liabilities 1,08,540.00        -                          -                          1,08,540.00           1,08,540.00           

Total 38,77,225.66      -                          -                          38,77,225.66         38,77,225.66         

Amortised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL
Total carrying 

value
Total fair value

Financial Aseet as at March 31, 2024
Cash and Cash equivalents 6,02,682.66        -                          -                          6,02,682.66           6,02,682.66           
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10,78,530.55      -                          -                          10,78,530.55         10,78,530.55         
Trade receivables 14,24,803.36      -                          -                          14,24,803.36         14,24,803.36         
Loans 32,992.86           -                          -                          32,992.86               32,992.86               
Investments 19,928.97           -                          1,26,143.13           1,46,072.10           10,78,530.55         
Other financial assets 26,51,611.66      -                          -                          26,51,611.66         26,51,611.66         

Total 58,10,550.06      -                          -                          59,36,693.18         68,69,151.64         
Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Trade payables 29,10,004.81      -                          -                          29,10,004.81         29,10,004.81         
Other financial liabilities 1,12,210.00        -                          -                          1,12,210.00           1,12,210.00           

Total 30,22,214.81      -                          -                          30,22,214.81         30,22,214.81         

As at March 31, 2024

For description of the Group's financial instrument risks, including risk management objectives and policies is given in, Note 38.The methods used to measure
financial assets and liabilities reported at fair value are described in the note below.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars
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(iii) Fair Value Hierarchy

(a) The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation techniques:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At fair value through profit or loss
Investments 58,982.28               -                          -                          -                          
Total 58,982.28               -                          -                          -                          

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At fair value through profit or loss
Investments 1,26,143.13           -                          -                          -                          
Total 1,26,143.13           -                          -                          -                          

(b) Financial Instrument measured at Amortised Cost

40 Financial Risk Management, Objective and Policies

The Group's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of The Group's risk management framework. The Group's
business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Risk management policies have been established
to identify and analyse the risks faced by The Group, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review and reflect the changes in the
policy accordingly. The Group's Management reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by The Group.

Financial Assets as at March 31, 2024

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values since the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or
settled.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet are grouped into three levels of a fair valuehierarchy, The three levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Financial Assets as at March 31, 2025

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal(or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of hether that price is directly observable or estimated using a 
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(a) Credit Risk:

(b) Market Risk:

(i) Foreign currency risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to The Group. Credit Risk arises principally from
The Group's cash and bank balances, trade receivables, investments, securities held for trade, loans, and security deposits. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. Credit risk assessment on various components is described below: 

(i) Trade receivables The Group's trade receivables primarily include receivables from asset management companies (AMCs) for services provided, 
receivable from stock exchanges (for trade executed on behalf of customers) as well as clients and receivable from insurance companies. The group has 
not made any provision on ECL on account of receivables from AMCs, Stock exchanges and Insurance companies. The group's management as establised 
accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts are regularly monitored. The group has a dedicated risk management team, which monitors 
the positions, exposures and margins on a continuous basis.
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, investments and Securities held for trade The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents, bank 
deposits, investment, and securities held for trade with reputed banks, financial institutions, and corporates. The credit risk on these instruments is 
limited because the counterparties are banks and high credit rated financial institutions and corporates assigned by credit rating agencies.
(iii) Security Deposits and Loans This consists of loans given to Employees and Security Deposits given to lessors as well as to utility providers like 
Electricity companies. These carries limited credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Group's historical experience of dealing with these 
parties.

(iv) Expected Credit Loss (ECL): The Group follows simplified ECL method in case of Trade Receivables and The Group recognises lifetime expected losses 
for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. The Group assesses the provision for ECL on each reporting dates. For the purpose 
of computation of ECL, the term default implies an event where amount due towards margin requirement and/or mark to market losses for which the 
client was unable to provide funds/collaterals, within 90 days of its due, to bridge the shortfall, the same is termed as margin call triggered. The Group 
assesses allowance for expected credit losses for Loans and other financial assets. The ECL allowance is based upon 12 months expected credit losses. 
These carries very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Company's historical experience of dealing with these parties. Credit 
Risk on Other Financial assets is considered insignificant considering the nature of such assets and absence of counterparty risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include foreign currency receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been
no change in the measurement and management of the Group's exposure to market risks.

The functional currency of The Group is INR. The Group does not have foreign currency exposure. Hence, currency risk is not there.
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(ii) Price Risk

As at March 31, 
2025 

As at March 31, 
2024

5,898.23                 12,614.31               
-5,898.23               -12,614.31             

(c) Liquidity risk:

41  Additional Information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statement.

as % of 
consolida

ted net 
assets

Amount
as % of 

consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

as % of 
consolidated 

comprehensive 
Income

Amount
as % Total 

Comprehensive 
Income

Amount

90.71% 22,26,559.24   111.47% 2,74,357.99        100.00% 2,643.28                 111.35% 2,77,001.27           

9.29% 2,27,968.78     -11.47% -28,226.47          0.00% -                          -11.35% -28,226.47             
Total 100.00% 24,54,528.02   100.00% 2,46,131.52        100.00% 2,643.28                 100.00% 2,48,774.80           

(iii) Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. Interest rate risk primarily arises from investments in debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities. The Group's investments in 
debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities are primarily short-term, which do not expose it to significant interest rate risk. Additionally, since there 
are no external borrowings, The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk in with respect to borrowings.

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices and related market variables including 
interest rate for investments in debt oriented mutual funds and debt securities, caused by factors specific to an individual investments, its issuer and 
market. The Group's exposure to price risk arises from diversified investments in mutual funds and Bonds, and Securities held for trade, and classified in 
the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss.

RSL

Parent 
Company

RCPL

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other
financial assets. The Group's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities. In doing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions. The Group also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with
expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short-term, medium-term, and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and by continuously monitoring cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Changes in Prices of 
Investments 

10%
-10%

Impact on profit or loss

 Profit before tax increased by
 Profit before tax Decreased by

 For the year ended March 31, 2025

 Name of 
entity

Share in total 
comprehensive income

 Share in other 
comprehensive income

 Net Assets Share in profit or loss

Subsidiary 
Company
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as % of 
consolida

ted net 
assets

Amount
as % of 

consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

as % of 
consolidated 

comprehensive 
Income

Amount

as % of 
consolidated Total 

Comprehensive 
Income

Amount

88.25% 19,52,201.25   82.39% 1,73,768.23        100.00% 7,834.61                 83.02% 1,81,602.84           

11.75% 2,59,852.25     17.61% 37,136.74           0.00% -                          16.98% 37,136.74               
Total 100.00% 22,12,053.50   100.00% 2,10,904.97        100.00% 7,834.61                 100.00% 2,18,739.58           

42 Operating Segment

The Group identifies Operating Segments as components of an entity for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the
Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance.
The Group's activities revolve around providing financial services, primarily share and stock broking services , acting as a Depository Participant , and
distributing Mutual Funds and other capital market products.
All of The Group's activities are considered by the CODM as one single, aggregated business. Aggregation is done due to the similarities of the financial
products and services provided to the customer, the nature of the services, and the methods used to provide them.
Considering the nature of The Group's business and the basis of review by the CODM for decision-making and performance measurement, The Group has only
one reportable segment namely, Broking and Related services. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures required to be furnished for a single reportable
segment.

Parent 
Company

RSL

Subsidiary 
Company

RCPL

 Name of entity

 For the year ended March 31, 2024

 Net Assets Share in profit or loss
 Share in other 

comprehensive income
Share in total 

comprehensive income
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43 Scheme of Amalgamation

Accounting Treatment:

44

(i) 5 (five) new equity shares of ₹10/- each in the Transferee Company for every 1 (one) equity share of ₹10/- each held in the Transferor Company.
(ii) 1 (one) 6% Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Preference Share (OFCRPS) of ₹10/- each in the Transferee Company for every 1 (one) equity share 
of ₹10/- each held in the Transferor Company.

Dissolution of Transferor Company: The Transferor Company, Ratnakar Securities Private Limited, stands dissolved without winding up from the Effective 

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (the "Scheme") under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Ahmedabad Bench, vide its order dated September 11, 2023, sanctioned the amalgamation of Ratnakar Securities Private Limited (the "Transferor Company")
with Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited (the "Transferee Company").
The Scheme became effective upon filing the certified copy of the NCLT order with the Registrar of Companies. In accordance with the Scheme.
Appointed Date: The amalgamation is effective from the Appointed Date of September 27, 2022 (the date on which the Resolution Plan was approved by the
NCLT).
Change of Name: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Transferee Company (Mangalya Soft-Tech Limited) was changed to "RATNAKAR 
SECURITIES LIMITED".
Nature of Amalgamation: The amalgamation is in the nature of a business combination under common control and has been accounted for using the "Pooling 
of Interest Method" as prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination).

All assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company were transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company at their existing carrying amounts as on the
Appointed Date.
The difference between the net assets and reserves of the Transferor Company has been adjusted in the Capital Reserve of the Transferee Company.

The Group is not required to comply with the Corporate Social Responsibilities as required under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the financial information for the comparative period has been restated as if the amalgamation had occurred from the
beginning of the comparative period.
Consideration: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in
the following proportion:
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45 Other Statutory Information

46

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (1 to 46)
As per our report of even date attached
For Maheshwari & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ratnakar Securities Limited 
Firm Reg.No. 012946C 

  Ajay Shah Kushal Shah
CA Vamesh Shah Managing director Whole-time director
Partner DIN :  0023582  DIN : 01843141 
Mem. No.: 165075
Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Harshil Shah Ajay Gandhi
UDIN: Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date: 14/11/2025 Date: 14/11/2025
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

The following disclosures are made as required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013:
(a) The Group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or is pending against The Group for holding any benami property.
(b) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(c) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of The Group (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(d) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(e) The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(f) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
(g) The Group does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.
(h) The Group has not taken any loan from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Consequently, the filing of quarterly returns
or statements of current assets with banks or financial institutions is not applicable to The Group.

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xiv) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the Group for
current and previous financial year as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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